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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements relating, among other matters, to our anticipated financial performance, future revenues or earnings, business prospects, projected
ventures, new products and services, anticipated market performance and similar matters.

These risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, include:

. our ability to license and monetize our patents, including the outcome of the litigation against online search
firms and other companies;

. our ability to monetize and recoup our investment with respect to patent assets that we acquire;

. our ability to protect our intellectual property rights;

. our ability to develop and introduce new products and/or develop new intellectual property;

. new legislation, regulations or court rulings related to enforcing patents that could harm our business and

operating results;

. our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations and business plan;
. our ability to maintain the listing of our securities on NASDAQ); and
. our ability to retain key members of our management team.

Forward-looking statements may appear throughout this report, including without limitation, the following sections: Item 1 “Business,” Item 1A
“Risk Factors,” and Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates, ? ” o« ” o« projects,” “will be,” “will

» « » « » «

expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,
continue,” “will likely result,” and similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and assumptions that are subject
to risks and uncertainties, which could cause our actual results to differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and in particular, the risks
discussed under the caption “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this report and those discussed in other documents we file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-looking statements, except as
required by law. Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.

All references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Vringo, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated
subsidiaries for periods after the closing of the Merger (as defined in Item 1.), and to I/P (as defined in Item 1.) and its consolidated subsidiaries for periods
prior to the closing of the Merger unless the context requires otherwise.




PART I
Item 1. Business
Overview

Vringo, Inc. (“Vringo”) strives to develop, acquire, license and protect innovation worldwide. We are currently focused on identifying, generating,
acquiring, and deriving economic benefits from intellectual property assets. We plan to continue to expand our portfolio of intellectual property assets through
acquiring and internally developing new technologies. We intend to monetize our technology portfolio through a variety of value enhancing initiatives,
including, but not limited to:

* licensing,
»  strategic partnerships, and
+ litigation.

We were incorporated in Delaware on January 9, 2006 and commenced operations during the first quarter of 2006. In March 2006, we formed a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Vringo (Israel) Ltd., for the primary purpose of providing research and development services. On July 19, 2012, Innovate/Protect,
Inc. (“I/P”) merged with us through an exchange of equity instruments of I/P for those of Vringo (the “Merger”). The Merger was accounted for as a reverse
acquisition pursuant to which I/P was considered the accounting acquirer of Vringo. As such, the financial statements of I/P are treated as the historical
financial statements of the combined company, with the results of Vringo included from July 19, 2012 (the effective date of the Merger) through December
31, 2013. Moreover, common stock amounts presented for comparative periods differ from those previously presented by I/P, due to application of accounting
requirements applicable to a reverse acquisition. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

We are a development stage company and until now, we have not yet generated any significant revenues. From the inception of I/P on June 8, 2011
(“Inception™) to date, we have raised approximately $97,403,000, which is, and have been used to finance our operations. Our average monthly use of cash
from operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was approximately $1,955,000 and $1,205,000, respectively. This is not necessarily
indicative of the future use of our working capital.

Our Strategy

We manage an intellectual property portfolio consisting of over 500 patents and patent applications, covering telecom infrastructure, internet search
and mobile technologies. These patents and patent applications have been developed internally and acquired from third parties. We innovate, acquire, license
and protect technology and intellectual property rights worldwide. We seek to expand our portfolio of intellectual property through acquisition and
development both internally and with third parties. Our goal is to partner with innovators of compelling technologies.

In potential acquisitions, we seek to purchase all of, or interests in, intellectual property in exchange for cash, securities of our company and/or
interests in the monetization of those assets. Our revenue from this aspect of our business can be generated through licensing and litigation efforts. We engage
in robust due diligence and a principled risk underwriting process to evaluate the merits and potential value of any acquisition or partnership. We seek to
structure the terms of our acquisitions and partnerships in a manner that will achieve the highest risk-adjusted returns possible. We believe that our capital
resources and potential access to capital, together with the experience of our management team and board of directors, will allow us to assemble a portfolio of
quality assets with short and long-term revenue opportunities.

Intellectual Property
Search Patents

In June 2011, I/P Engine acquired eight patents from Lycos, Inc. (“Lycos”) through its wholly-owned subsidiary, I/P Engine. On September 15,
2011, I/P Engine initiated litigation in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Virginia, against AOL Inc. (“AOL”), Google, Inc. (“Google”), IAC
Search & Media, Inc., Gannett Company, Inc., and Target Corporation (collectively, the “Defendants”) for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,314,420 (the
"'420 Patent") and 6,775,664 (the "'664 Patent", and collectively the “Asserted Patents”).

On November 6, 2012, a jury in Norfolk, Virginia unanimously returned a verdict in favor of I/P Engine as follows: (i) I/P Engine had proven by a
preponderance of the evidence that the Defendants infringed all of the asserted claims of the Asserted Patents; (ii) Defendants had not proven by clear and
convincing evidence that any of the asserted claims of the Asserted Patents were invalid by anticipation; (iii) damages should be based on a "running royalty,"
(iv) the running royalty rate should be 3.5%; and (v) damages totaling of approximately $30.5 million should be awarded to I/P Engine. The jury also found
certain specific facts related to the ultimate question of whether the patents were invalid as obvious. Based on such facts, on November 20, 2012, the District
Court issued a ruling that Asserted Patents were not invalid as obvious, and the Court entered final judgment.

On January 3, 2014, the District Court ordered that I/P Engine recover an additional sum of $17.32 million from Defendants for supplemental
damages and prejudgment interest. On January 21, 2014, the District Court ruled that Defendants' alleged design-around was "nothing more than a colorable
variation of the system adjudged to infringe," and accordingly I/P Engine "is entitled to ongoing royalties as long as Defendants continue to use the modified
system." On January 28, 2014, the District Court ruled that the appropriate ongoing royalty rate for Defendants' continued infringement of the Asserted
Patents that "would reasonably compensate [I/P Engine] for giving up [its] right to exclude yet allow an ongoing willful infringer to make a reasonable profit"
is a rate of 6.5% of the 20.9% royalty base previously set by the District Court.




Both I/P Engine and the Defendants have appealed the case to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. The case number for the District
Court case is 2:11 CV 512-RAJ. The case numbers for the cases in the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit are 13-1307, 13-1313, 14-1233 and 14-1289.
The court dockets for proceedings in District Court and the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, including the parties’ briefs, are publicly available on the
Public Access to Court Electronic Records website (“PACER”), www.pacer.gov, which is operated by the Administrative Office of the U.S. Courts.

On January 31, 2013, I/P Engine initiated litigation in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York, against Microsoft Corporation
(“Microsoft”). On May 30, 2013, I/P Engine entered into a settlement and license agreement with Microsoft to resolve the litigation. According to the
agreement, Microsoft paid I/P Engine $1,000,000 and agreed to pay 5% of any future amount Google pays for its use of the patents acquired from Lycos. The
parties also agreed to a limitation on Microsoft's total liability, which would not impact us unless the amounts received from Google substantially exceed the
judgment previously awarded. In addition, the parties entered into a patent assignment agreement, pursuant to which Microsoft assigned six patents to I/P
Engine. The assigned patents relate to telecommunications, data management, and other technology areas. The case number was 1:13 CV 00688.

Requests for reexamination are a standard tactic used by defendants in patent litigation cases. Google has filed four separate requests for
reexamination of the asserted patents at the USPTO, with the two requests on the '664 patent being merged. To date, three of the reexaminations have been
resolved in I/P Engine's favor. On December 13, 2013, the USPTO issued a reexamination certificate confirming that all of the claims of the '664 Patent
remain valid and unchanged. On September 13, 2013, the USPTO issued a reexamination certificate confirming that all of the claims of the '420 Patent
remain valid and unchanged. Thereafter, Google filed an additional request for reexamination of the '420 patent based solely on a single reference, a
reference that had been considered during one of the previous ‘664 Patent reexamination applications. On January 31, 2014, the USPTO issued a first, non-
final rejection of the challenged claims in the '420 Patent. I/P Engine is permitted to follow USPTO procedures to defend the validity of the '420 patent.
Documents regarding USPTO proceedings are publicly available on the Patent Application Information Retrieval website,
http://portal.uspto.gov/pair/PublicPair, which is operated by the USPTO.

Infrastructure Patents

On August 9, 2012, we entered into a patent purchase agreement with Nokia Corporation ("Nokia"), comprising of 124 patent families with
counterparts world-wide. We paid Nokia a cash payment of $22,000,000 and granted Nokia certain ongoing rights in revenues generated from the patent
portfolio. The portfolio encompasses technologies relating to telecom infrastructure, including communication management, data and signal transmission,
mobility management, radio resources management and services. Declarations were filed by Nokia indicating that 31 of the 124 patent families acquired may
be essential to  wireless communications standards. Copies of the declarations are available on our website at
http://www.vringoip.com/documents/FG/vringo/ip/99208 Nokia ETSI Declarations.pdf.

As one of the means of realizing the value of the patents on telecom infrastructure, our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Vringo Infrastructure, Inc.
(“Vringo Infrastructure”) and Vringo Germany GmbH (“Vringo Germany”) have filed a number of suits against ZTE Corporation (“ZTE”), ASUSTeK
Computer Inc. (“ASUS”), ADT Corporation (“ADT”) and Tyco Integrated Security, LLC (“Tyco”) and their subsidiaries and affiliates in the United States,
European jurisdictions, India and Australia, alleging infringement of certain U.S., European, Indian and Australian patents.

ZTE

On October 5, 2012, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a suit in the UK High Court of Justice, Chancery Division, Patents Court, alleging infringement of
European Patents (UK) 1,212,919; 1,166,589; and 1,808,029. ZTE’s formal response to the complaint was received on December 19, 2012 and included a
counterclaim for invalidity of the patents in suit. Vringo Infrastructure responded to the defense on January 16, 2013. Vringo Infrastructure filed a further UK
suit on December 3, 2012, alleging infringement of European Patents (UK) 1,221,212; 1,330,933; and 1,186,119. The first UK case will hold a trial in late
October 2014 and the second UK case will hold a trial in early June 2015.

On November 15, 2012, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Mannheim Regional Court in Germany, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE)
1,212,919. The litigation was expanded to include a second patent on February 21, 2013, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 1,186,119. At the
Mannheim Court’s request, both cases were scheduled to be heard on the same day, October 15, 2013, but were later moved to November 12, 2013. On
November 4, 2013 we filed a further brief in the European Patent 1,212,919 proceedings introducing an additional independent patent claim and asserting
infringement by ZTE eNode B infrastructure equipment used in 4G networks. In light of the additional products accused, the European Patent 1,186,119 case
was heard on November 12, 2013 and the hearing in the European Patent 1,212,919 case was moved to April 28, 2014.

On December 17, 2013, the Court issued its judgment, finding that ZTE infringed European Patent 1,186,119 and ordered an accounting and an
injunction upon payment of the appropriate bonds. Vringo Germany paid in the bonds for the accounting, which is now in process. On February 19, 2014,
Vringo Germany filed suit in the Mannheim Regional Court seeking enforcement of the accounting ordered in European Patent 1,186,119 and a further order
that non-compliance be subject to civil and criminal penalties. Trial in this suit is scheduled for July 4, 2014.

On December 27, 2013, ZTE filed a notice of appeal of the Mannheim Regional Court’s judgment. On January 24, 2014, ZTE filed an emergency
motion with the Court of Appeals seeking a stay of the judge’s order pending appeal. On February 24, 2014, ZTE’s motion was denied.

On February 14, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 1,212,919 in the Federal Patents Court, Munich, Germany,
alleging invalidity of the patent. Trial in the nullity suit has not been scheduled but is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2014.

On May 3, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 1,186,119 in the Federal Patents Court in Munich, Germany. Trial in
the nullity suit has not been scheduled but is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2014.

On September 13, 2013, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Regional Court of Diisseldorf, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,748,136.
The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.




On December 20, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 0,748,136 in the Federal Patents Court in Munich, Germany. A
schedule has not yet been set. Trial is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2015.

On January 28, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Regional Court of Diisseldorf alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,710,941.
The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

In November and December 2012, ZTE initiated invalidity proceedings in China against Chinese Patents ZL 00806049.5; ZL 00812876.6; and ZL
200480044232.1, before the Patent Reexamination Board of the Patent Office of the People’s Republic of China. These patents are the Chinese counterparts
of European Patents 1,166,589; 1,212,919; and 1,808,029. On July 3, 2013, the patent rights for ZL. 200480044232.1 (counterpart to European Patent
1,808,029) were upheld. An oral hearing for ZL.00806049.5 (equivalent to European Patent 1,166,589) occurred on May 9, 2013 and a ruling is still pending.
An oral hearing for ZL 00812876.6 (equivalent to European Patent 1,212,919) was held on December 23, 2013, and a ruling is still pending.

On March 29, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit in France in the Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris, alleging
infringement of the French part of European Patents 1,186,119 and 1,221,212 by ZTE devices, which are believed to fall within the scope of these patents.
Vringo Infrastructure filed the lawsuit based on particular information uncovered during a seizure to obtain evidence of infringement, known as a saisie-
contrefagon, which was executed at two of ZTE's facilities in France. The oral hearing in relation to EP (FR) 1,186,119 and 1,221,212 has been scheduled for

December 8, 2014 before the 3" division of the 3™ chamber of the Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris (specializing in IP matters).

On June 11, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the Federal Court of Australia in the New South Wales registry,
alleging infringement by ZTE of Australian Standard Patents AU 2005/212,893 and AU 773,182. We currently anticipate that the Court will set a trial date in
the second half of 2014.

On September 6, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a preliminary inquiry order against ZTE in the Commercial Court of Madrid, Spain, requiring
ZTE to provide discovery relating to alleged infringement of Spanish Patent 2220484 (EP (ES) 1,186,119). In light of ZTE’s non-responsiveness to the order,
on March 24, 2014 the Court granted our request to seek discovery of certain of ZTE’s Spanish customers.

On November 7, 2013, we and our subsidiary, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi,
India, alleging infringement of Indian patent 243,980. On November 8, 2013, the Court granted an ex-parte preliminary injunction and appointed
commissioners to inspect ZTE’s facilities and collect evidence. ZTE appealed the preliminary injunction and, on December 12, 2013, the appellate panel
instituted an interim arrangement, requiring ZTE to file an accounting affidavit disclosing the number of CDMA devices sold by its entities in India, revenue
derived therefrom, and other supporting documentation. The Court also required ZTE to pay a bond of 50 million rupees (approximately $800,000 USD),
directed Indian customs authorities to notify us when all relevant ZTE goods are imported into India, and required ZTE to give us the opportunity to inspect
those goods. ZTE filed its accounting affidavit on January 13, 2014. On February 3, 2014, we filed a motion for contempt for ZTE’s failure to comply with
the Court’s order, and requested that the Court order ZTE to pay an increased bond.

On January 31, 2014, we and our subsidiary, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi,
alleging infringement of Indian patent 200,572. The Court, finding a prima facie case of infringement, granted an ex-parte preliminary injunction, restraining
ZTE and its officers, directors, agents, distributors and customers from importing, selling, offering for sale, advertising, installing, or operating any infringing
products, and giving us the right to inspect any infringing goods arriving in India, which are to be detained by customs authorities. The judge granted the
injunction after ruling that we would suffer an irreparable loss if such an injunction were not put into place.

ASUS

On October 4, 2013, Vringo Germany filed a patent infringement lawsuit against ASUS in the Diisseldorf Regional Court, alleging infringement of
European Patent (DE) 0,748,136. The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

On January 29, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Diisseldorf Regional Court alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,710,941. The
case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

On February 7, 2014, Vringo Infrastructure, Inc. filed a suit in the Commercial Court of Barcelona alleging infringement of European Patent (ES)
0,748,136.

ADT/Tyco
On September 12, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit against ADT and Tyco in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida. The lawsuit alleges infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,288,641, entitled "Assembly, and Associated Method, for Remotely

Monitoring a Surveillance Area."

On January 15, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a patent infringement lawsuit against Tyco in the Regional Court of Mannheim, alleging infringement of
European Patent 1,221,149, entitled “Process and Device for Surveillance of a Room.”

On January 28, 2014, Vringo Infrastructure announced that it had entered into a confidential agreement with ADT. The agreement resolved litigation
pending between the parties in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. Tyco remains a defendant in the ongoing litigation.




Sale of mobile social application business to InfoMedia Services Limited (“Infomedia”)

On December 31, 2013, we entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement with Infomedia for the sale of certain assets (mostly comprised of our
acquired technology) and the assignment of certain agreements related to our mobile social application business. The closing of the transaction, which was
subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions, occurred on February 18, 2014 (“Closing”). Upon Closing, in exchange for the assets and
agreements related to our mobile social application business, we received 18 Class B shares of Infomedia, which represent an 8.25% ownership interest in
Infomedia.

Infomedia is a privately owned, UK based, provider of customer relationship management and monetization technologies to mobile carriers and
device manufacturers. As part of the transaction, we will have the opportunity to license certain intellectual property assets and support Infomedia to identify
and protect new intellectual property. Additionally, Vringo’s CEO was appointed as a full voting member on Infomedia’s board of directors.

In connection with this sale of our mobile social application business, an impairment loss of $7,253,000 was recorded during the fourth quarter of
2013, which represents the excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair value of the asset group. The fair value of the asset group was estimated using
an income approach by developing a discounted, future, net cash flows model. Refer to Note 7 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
further discussion of the accounting related to this transaction.

Employees

As of February 21, 2014, we have 18 full time employees. We do not have employees that are represented by a labor union or are covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition, results of operations and the trading price of our common stock could be materially adversely affected by any of
the following risks as well as the other risks highlighted elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly the discussions about regulation,
competition and intellectual property. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may materially
dffect our business operations.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects.

We are a development stage company and we have generated no significant revenue to date. I/P, the accounting acquirer, was incorporated in June
2011, at which time it acquired patent assets from Lycos, Inc. To date, our business is focused on the assertion of these patents and other patents we acquired.
Therefore, we not only have a very limited operating history, but also a limited track record in executing our business model which includes, among other
things, creating, prosecuting, licensing, litigating or otherwise monetizing our patent assets. Our limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate our
current business model and future prospects.

In light of the costs, uncertainties, delays and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in the early stages of development with no operating
history, there is a significant risk that we will not be able to:

+  implement or execute our current business plan, or demonstrate that our business plan is sound; and/or
» raise sufficient funds in the capital markets to effectuate our long-term business plan.
If we are unable to execute any one of the foregoing or similar matters relating to our operations, our business may fail.

‘We commenced legal proceedings against the major online search engines, security and communications companies, and we expect such proceedings
to be time-consuming and costly, which may adversely affect our financial condition and our ability to operate our business.

To license or otherwise monetize the patent assets that we own, we commenced legal proceedings against a number of large, multi-national
companies, pursuant to which we allege that such companies infringe on one or more of our patents. Our viability is highly dependent on the outcome of these
litigations, and there is a risk that we may be unable to achieve the results we desire from such litigation, which failure would harm our business to a great
degree. In addition, the defendants in these litigations have substantially more resources than we do, which could make our litigation efforts more difficult.

We anticipate that legal proceedings may continue for several years and may require significant expenditures for legal fees and other expenses.
Disputes regarding the assertion of patents and other intellectual property rights are highly complex and technical. Once initiated, we may be forced to litigate
against other parties in addition to the originally named defendants. Our adversaries may allege defenses and/or file counterclaims for inter alia revocation of
our patents or file collateral litigations or initiate investigations in the United States, Europe, India, China or elsewhere in an effort to avoid or limit liability
and damages for patent infringement. If such actions are successful, they may preclude our ability to derive licensing revenue from the patents currently being
asserted.

Additionally, we anticipate that our legal fees and other expenses will be material and will negatively impact our financial condition and results of
operations and may result in our inability to continue our business. We estimate that our legal fees over the next twelve months will be significant for these
enforcement actions. Expenses thereafter are dependent on the outcome of the status of the litigation. Our failure to monetize our patent assets would
significantly harm our business.

Further, should we be deemed the losing party in many of our litigations, we may be liable for some or all of our opponents’ legal fees.
In any of our applications to the Court in the UK ZTE litigation or for the entire UK ZTE litigation, we may be held responsible for a substantial
percentage of the defendant’s legal fees for the relevant application or for the litigation. These fees may be substantial. To date, ZTE has asserted that its

anticipated fees in defending the UK litigation may be approximately $5,800,000.

In Australia, should we be deemed the losing party in any of our applications to the Court or for the entire litigation, we may be held responsible for
a substantial percentage of the defendant’s legal fees for the relevant application or for the litigation. These fees may be substantial.






In Australia, should we be deemed the losing party in any of our applications to the Court or for the entire litigation, we may be held responsible for
a substantial percentage of the defendant’s legal fees for the relevant application or for the litigation. These fees may be substantial.

In Germany, the amount of fees payable by a losing party is determined based on certain possible statutory levels of “value in dispute.” The value in
dispute is only very loosely correlated to the actual value of any potential final settlement or license. Under the current statute, our risk is capped at
approximately $952,000 (or €732,000) were the court to determine that the value in dispute is at the highest tier under law.

In France, should we be deemed to be the losing party, it is more likely than not that we will be ordered to pay a contribution to ZTE’s attorney and
expert fees. The court in France will make an assessment of winning party’s costs during the course of the proceeding on the merits, and at its discretion order
the losing party to pay a portion of those costs, typically between 40-60%.

As of today, we cannot estimate our potential future liability. However, should we be successful on any court applications in the UK, Australia,
France, or Germany or the entire litigation and/or litigations, our adversary may be responsible for a substantial percentage of our legal fees.

In Germany, should the court order an injunction for it to be enforced, we will have to pay a security based on the relevant statutory rate. In our
litigations against ZTE and ASUS the statutory rate is approximately $1,300,000 (or €1,000,000) for each patent asserted. In our litigation with Tyco, the rate
is approximately $650,000 (or €500,000). The statutory rate is only loosely correlated to any actual harm the defendant may suffer from an injunction. The
district court judge is entitled to increase the amount of the security. Generally, the courts take the value in dispute as the amount payable as security

Further, if any of the patents in suit are found not infringed or invalid, it is highly unlikely that the relevant patents would be viewed as essential and
therefore infringed by all unlicensed market participants.

While we believe that the patents we own are being infringed there is a risk that a court will find the patents invalid, not infringed or unenforceable
and/or that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) or other relevant patent office will either invalidate the patents or materially narrow the
scope of their claims during the course of a reexamination, opposition or other such proceeding. In addition, even with a pesitive trial court verdict,
the patents may be invalidated, found not infringed or rendered unenforceable on appeal. This risk may occur either presently or from time to time
in connection with future litigations we may bring. If this were to occur, it would have a material adverse effect on the viability of our company and
our operations.

We believe that certain companies infringe our patents, but recognize that obtaining and collecting a judgment against such companies may be
difficult or impossible. Patent litigation is inherently risky and the outcome is uncertain. Some of the parties that we believe infringe on our patents are large
and well-financed companies with substantially greater resources than ours. We believe that these parties would devote a substantial amount of resources in
an attempt to avoid or limit a finding that they are liable for infringing on our patents or, in the event liability is found, to avoid or limit the amount of
associated damages. In addition, there is a risk that these parties may file reexaminations or other proceedings with the USPTO or other government agencies
in the United States or abroad in an attempt to invalidate, narrow the scope or render unenforceable the patents we own.

Moreover, in connection with any of our present or future patent enforcement actions, it is possible that a defendant may request and/or a court may
rule that we violated relevant statues, regulations, rules or standards relating to the substantive or procedural aspects of such enforcement actions in the United
States or abroad. In such event, a court or other regulatory agency may issue monetary sanctions against us or our operating subsidiaries or award attorneys’
fees and/or expenses to one or more defendants, which could be material, and if we or our subsidiaries are required to pay such monetary sanctions, attorneys’
fees and/or expenses, such payment could materially harm our operating results and financial position.

In addition, it is difficult in general to predict the outcome of patent enforcement litigation at the trial or appellate level. In the United States, there is
a higher rate of appeals in patent enforcement litigation than standard business litigation. The defendant to any case we bring, may file as many appeals as
allowed by right, including to the first, second and/or final courts of appeal (in the United States those courts would be the Federal Circuit and Supreme
Court, respectively). Such appeals are expensive and time-consuming, and the outcomes of such appeals are sometimes unpredictable, resulting in increased
costs and reduced or delayed revenue.

We may not be able to successfully monetize the patents we acquired from Nokia, nor any of the other patent acquisitions, thus we may fail to realize
all of the anticipated benefits of such acquisition.

There is no assurance that we will be able to successfully monetize the patent portfolio that we acquired from Nokia, nor any other of the patent
acquisitions. The patents we acquired from Nokia could fail to produce anticipated benefits, or could have other adverse effects that we currently do not
foresee. Failure to successfully monetize these patent assets may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, the acquisition of the patent portfolio is subject to a number of risks, including, but not limited to the following:

»  There is a significant time lag between acquiring a patent portfolio and recognizing revenue from those patent assets, if at all. During that time
lag, material costs are likely to be incurred that would have a negative effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial position.

+  The integration of a patent portfolio is a time consuming and expensive process that may disrupt our operations. If our integration efforts are
not successful, our results of operations could be harmed. In addition, we may not achieve anticipated synergies or other benefits from such
acquisition.

Therefore, there is no assurance that we will be able to monetize the acquired patent portfolio and recoup our investment.

We may seek to internally develop new inventions and intellectual property, which would take time and would be costly. Moreover, the failure to
obtain or maintain intellectual property rights for such inventions would lead to the loss of our investments in such activities.

Members of our management team have experience as inventors. As such, part of our business may include the internal development of new
inventions or intellectual property that we will seek to monetize. However, this aspect of our business would likely require significant capital and would take
time to achieve. Such activities could also distract our management team from its present business initiatives, which could have a material and adverse effect
on our business. There is also the risk that our initiatives in this regard would not yield any viable new inventions or technology, which would lead to a loss of
our investments in time and resources in such activities.






In addition, even if we are able to internally develop new inventions, in order for those inventions to be viable and to compete effectively, we would
need to develop and maintain, and they would heavily rely on, a proprietary position with respect to such inventions and intellectual property. However, there
are significant risks associated with any such intellectual property we may develop principally including the following:

+  patent applications we may file may not result in issued patents or may take longer than we expect to result in issued patents;
*  we may be subject to opposition proceedings in the U.S. or foreign countries;

*  any patents that are issued to us may not provide meaningful protection;

*  we may not be able to develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;

»  other companies may challenge patents issued to us;

+  other companies may have independently developed and/or patented (or may in the future independently develop and patent) similar or
alternative technologies, or duplicate our technologies;

»  other companies may design around patents we have developed; and
+  enforcement of our patents could be complex, uncertain and very expensive.

We cannot be certain that patents will be issued as a result of any future applications, or that any of our patents, once issued, will provide us with
adequate protection from competing products. For example, issued patents may be circumvented or challenged, declared invalid or unenforceable, or
narrowed in scope. In addition, since publication of discoveries in scientific or patent literature often lags behind actual discoveries, we cannot be certain that
we will be the first to make our additional new inventions or to file patent applications covering those inventions. It is also possible that others may have or
may obtain issued patents that could prevent us from commercializing our products or require us to obtain licenses requiring the payment of significant fees
or royalties in order to enable us to conduct our business. As to those patents that we may license or otherwise monetize, our rights will depend on
maintaining our obligations to the licensor under the applicable license agreement, and we may be unable to do so. Our failure to obtain or maintain
intellectual property rights for our inventions would lead to the loss of our investments in such activities, which would have a material and adverse effect on
our company.

Moreover, patent application delays could cause delays in recognizing revenue from our internally generated patents and could cause us to miss
opportunities to license patents before other competing technologies are developed or introduced into the market.

New legislation, regulations or court rulings related to enforcing patents could harm our business and operating results.

Intellectual property is the subject of intense scrutiny by the courts, legislatures and executive branches of governments around the world. Various
patent offices, governments or intergovernmental bodies (like the European Commission) may implement new legislation, regulations or rulings that impact
the patent enforcement process or the rights of patent holders and such changes could negatively affect our business model. For example, limitations on the
ability to bring patent enforcement claims, limitations on potential liability for patent infringement, lower evidentiary standards for invalidating patents,
increases in the cost to resolve patent disputes and other similar developments could negatively affect our ability to assert our patent or other intellectual
property rights.

In September 2013, the Federal Trade Commission announced that it is planning to gather information from approximately 25 companies that are in
the business of buying and asserting patents in order to develop a better understanding of how those companies do business and impact innovation and
competition. Both the Federal Trade Commission and European Commission are actively considering what the appropriate restrictions are on the ability of
owners of patents declared to technical standards to receive both injunctions and royalties.

Furthermore, United States patent laws have been amended by the Leahy-Smith America Invents Act, or the America Invents Act. The America
Invents Act includes a number of significant changes to U.S. patent law. In general, the legislation attempts to address issues surrounding the enforceability of
patents and the increase in patent litigation by, among other things, establishing new procedures for patent litigation. For example, the America Invents Act
changes the way that parties may be joined in patent infringement actions, increasing the likelihood that such actions will need to be brought against
individual parties allegedly infringing by their respective individual actions or activities. At this time, it is not clear what, if any, impact the America Invents
Act will have on the operation of our enforcement business. However, the America Invents Act and its implementation could increase the uncertainties and
costs surrounding the enforcement of our patented technologies, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

In addition, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) has conducted reviews of the patent system to evaluate the impact of patent assertion entities on
industries in which those patents relate. It is possible that the findings and recommendations of the DOJ could impact the ability to effectively license and
enforce standards-essential patents and could increase the uncertainties and costs surrounding the enforcement of any such patented technologies.

Furthermore, in various pending litigation and appeals in the United States Federal courts, various arguments and legal theories are being advanced
to potentially limit the scope of damages a patent licensing company such as us might be entitled to. Any one of these pending cases could result in new legal
doctrines that could make our existing or future patent portfolios less valuable or more costly to enforce.

Further, and in general, it is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or initiatives that may be proposed, or
whether any of the proposals will become enacted as laws. Compliance with any new or existing laws or regulations could be difficult and expensive, affect
the manner in which we conduct our business and negatively impact our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. That said, to date,
we do not believe that any existing or proposed statutory or regulatory change has materially affected our business.

Acquisitions of additional patent assets may be time consuming, complex and costly, which could adversely affect our operating results.

Acquisitions of patents or other intellectual property assets, which are and will be critical to our business plan, are often time consuming, complex
and costly to consummate. We may utilize many different transaction structures in our acquisitions and the terms of such acquisition agreements tend to be
heavily negotiated. As a result, we expect to incur significant operating expenses and will likely be required to raise capital during the negotiations even if the
acquisition is ultimately not consummated. Even if we are able to acquire particular patents or other intellectual property assets, there is no guarantee that we



will generate sufficient revenue related to those assets to offset the acquisition costs. While we will seek to conduct confirmatory due diligence on the patents
or other intellectual property assets we are considering for acquisition, we may acquire such assets from a seller who does not have proper title to those assets.

In those cases, we may be required to spend significant resources to defend our interest in such assets and, if we are not successful, our acquisition may be
invalid, in which case we could lose part or all of our investment in those assets.
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We may also identify patents or other intellectual property assets that cost more than we are prepared to spend with our own capital resources. We
may incur significant costs to organize and negotiate a structured acquisition that does not ultimately result in an acquisition of any patents or other
intellectual property assets or, if consummated, proves to be unprofitable for us. These higher costs could adversely affect our operating results, and if we
incur losses, the value of our securities will decline.

In addition, we may acquire patents and technologies that are in the early stages of adoption in the commercial, industrial and consumer markets.
Demand for some of these technologies will likely be untested and may be subject to fluctuation based upon the rate at which our licensees will adopt our
patents and technologies in their products and services. As a result, there can be no assurance as to whether technologies we acquire or develop will have
value that we can monetize.

In certain acquisitions of patent assets, we may seek to defer payment or finance a portion of the acquisition price. This approach may put us at a
competitive disadvantage and could result in harm to our business.

We have limited capital and may seek to negotiate acquisitions of patent or other intellectual property assets where we can defer payments or finance
a portion of the acquisition price. These types of debt financing or deferred payment arrangements may not be as attractive to sellers of patent assets as
receiving the full purchase price for those assets in cash at the closing of the acquisition. As a result, we might not compete effectively against other
companies in the market for acquiring patent assets, some of whom have greater cash resources than we have.

Competition is intense in the industries in which our subsidiaries do business and as a result, we may not be able to grow or maintain our market
share for our technologies and patents.

We expect to encounter competition in the area of patent acquisition and enforcement as the number of companies entering this market is increasing.
This includes competitors seeking to acquire the same or similar patents and technologies that we may seek to acquire. As new technological advances occur,
many of our patented technologies may become obsolete before they are completely monetized. If we are unable to replace obsolete technologies with more
technologically advanced patented technologies, then this obsolescence could have a negative effect on our ability to generate future revenues.

Our licensing business also competes with venture capital firms and various industry leaders for technology licensing opportunities. Many of these
competitors may have more financial and human resources than we do. As we become more successful, we may find more companies entering the market for
similar technology opportunities, which may reduce our market share in one or more technology industries that we currently rely upon to generate future
revenue.

Weak global economic conditions may cause infringing parties to delay entering into licensing agreements, which could prolong our litigation and
adversely affect our financial condition and operating results.

Our business plan depends significantly on worldwide economic conditions, and the United States and world economies have recently experienced
weak economic conditions. Uncertainty about global economic conditions poses a risk as businesses may postpone spending in response to tighter credit,
negative financial news and declines in income or asset values. This response could have a material negative effect on the willingness of parties infringing on
our assets to enter into licensing or other revenue generating agreements voluntarily. Entering into such agreements is critical to our business plan, and our
failure to do so could cause material harm to our business.

The exercise of a substantial number of warrants or options by our security holders may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common
stock.

Should our warrants outstanding as of February 21, 2014, be exercised, there would be an additional 17,800,673 shares of common stock eligible for
trading in the public market. In addition, we currently have incentive equity instruments outstanding to purchase 12,969,039 shares of our common stock
granted to our management, employees, directors and consultants. Certain options granted to officers, directors and certain key employees are subject to
acceleration of vesting of 75% and 100% (according to the agreement signed with each grantee), upon a subsequent change of control. Certain options
granted in prior years that are outstanding have exercise prices that are below recent market prices. Such securities, if exercised, will increase the number of
issued and outstanding shares of our common stock. Therefore, the sale, or even the possibility of sale, of the shares of common stock underlying the warrants
and options could have an adverse effect on the market price for our securities and/or on our ability to obtain future financing.

Future sales of our shares of common stock by our stockholders could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even if our
business is otherwise performing well.

As of February 21, 2014, we had 85,797,826 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, excluding shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of warrants, options or restricted stock units (“RSUs”). As shares saleable under Rule 144 are sold or as restrictions on resale lapse, the market price
of our common stock could drop significantly, if the holders of restricted shares sell them, or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them. This
decline in our stock price could occur even if our business is otherwise performing well.
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Technology company stock prices are especially volatile, and this volatility may depress the price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations, and the market prices of technology companies have been highly
volatile. We believe that various factors may cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate, perhaps substantially, including, among others, the
following:

developments or disputes concerning our patents;

announcements of developments in our patent enforcement actions;

additions to or departures of our key personnel;

announcements of technological innovations by us or our competitors;

announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, capital commitments, new
technologies, or patents;

new regulatory pronouncements and changes in regulatory guidelines;

changes in financial estimates or recommendations by securities analysts; and

general and industry-specific economic conditions.

The market prices of the securities of technology companies have been highly volatile and are likely to remain highly volatile in the future. The stock
market as a whole also has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the market price of many technology companies in ways that
may have been unrelated to these companies' operating performance. Furthermore, we believe that fluctuations in our stock price can also be impacted by
court rulings and/or other developments in our patent licensing and enforcement actions and stock price may reflect certain future growth and profitability
expectations. If we fail to meet these expectations then our stock price may significantly decline which could have an adverse impact on investor confidence.

Our ability to raise capital through equity or equity-linked transactions may be limited.

In order for us to raise capital privately through equity or equity-linked transactions, stockholder approval is required to enable us to issue more than
19.99% of our outstanding shares of common stock pursuant to the rules and regulations of the NASDAQ Capital Market. Should stockholders not approve
such issuances, one means to raise capital would be through debt, which could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated balance sheet and overall
financial condition.

We may not be able to raise additional capital. Moreover, additional financing may have an adverse effect on the value of the equity instruments held
by our stockholders.

We may choose to raise additional funds in connection with any potential acquisition of patent portfolios or other intellectual property assets or
operating businesses. In addition, we may also need additional funds to respond to business opportunities and challenges, including our ongoing operating
expenses, protection of our assets, development of new lines of business and enhancement of our operating infrastructure. While we will need to seek
additional funding, we may not be able to obtain financing on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, the terms of our financings may be dilutive to, or
otherwise adversely affect, holders of our common stock. We may also seek additional funds through arrangements with collaborators or other third parties.
We may not be able to negotiate arrangements on acceptable terms, if at all. If we are unable to obtain additional funding on a timely basis, we may be
required to curtail or terminate some or all of our business plans. Any such financing that we undertake will likely be dilutive to our current stockholders.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We currently have two offices for which the annual rent amounts total $209,000. Our New York office, which serves as our corporate U.S. executive
office, is located at 780 3rd Avenue, New York, New York. During January 2014, we entered into an amended lease agreement with the landlord for a new
office space within the building. Once the new office space becomes available and we move to the new office, the annual rent will increase to approximately

$403,000. The lease for the New York office will expire 5 years and 3 months after the new office is available. Our other office is located in Israel for which
the lease will expire in May 2014. We believe that our facilities are adequate to accommodate our business needs.

12




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Search Patents

In June 2011, I/P Engine acquired eight patents from Lycos, Inc. (“Lycos”) through its wholly-owned subsidiary, I/P Engine. On September 15,
2011, I/P Engine initiated litigation in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Virginia, against AOL Inc. (“AOL”), Google, Inc. (“Google”), IAC
Search & Media, Inc., Gannett Company, Inc., and Target Corporation (collectively, the “Defendants”) for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,314,420 (the
"'420 Patent") and 6,775,664 (the "'664 Patent", and collectively the “Asserted Patents”).

On November 6, 2012, a jury in Norfolk, Virginia unanimously returned a verdict in favor of I/P Engine as follows: (i) I/P Engine had proven by a
preponderance of the evidence that the Defendants infringed all of the asserted claims of the Asserted Patents; (ii) Defendants had not proven by clear and
convincing evidence that any of the asserted claims of the Asserted Patents were invalid by anticipation; (iii) damages should be based on a "running royalty,"
(iv) the running royalty rate should be 3.5%; and (v) damages totaling of approximately $30.5 million should be awarded to I/P Engine. The jury also found
certain specific facts related to the ultimate question of whether the patents were invalid as obvious. Based on such facts, on November 20, 2012, the District
Court issued a ruling that Asserted Patents were not invalid as obvious, and the Court entered final judgment.

On January 3, 2014, the District Court ordered that I/P Engine recover an additional sum of $17.32 million from Defendants for supplemental
damages and prejudgment interest. On January 21, 2014, the District Court ruled that Defendants' alleged design-around was "nothing more than a colorable
variation of the system adjudged to infringe," and accordingly I/P Engine "is entitled to ongoing royalties as long as Defendants continue to use the modified
system." On January 28, 2014, the District Court ruled that the appropriate ongoing royalty rate for Defendants' continued infringement of the Asserted
Patents that "would reasonably compensate [I/P Engine] for giving up [its] right to exclude yet allow an ongoing willful infringer to make a reasonable profit"
is a rate of 6.5% of the 20.9% royalty base previously set by the District Court.

Both I/P Engine and the Defendants have appealed the case to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. The case number for the District
Court case is 2:11 CV 512-RAJ. The case numbers for the cases in the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit are 13-1307, 13-1313, 14-1233 and 14-1289.
The court dockets for proceedings in District Court and the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, including the parties’ briefs, are publicly available on the
Public Access to Court Electronic Records website (“PACER”), www.pacer.gov, which is operated by the Administrative Office of the U.S. Courts.

On January 31, 2013, I/P Engine initiated litigation in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York, against Microsoft Corporation
(“Microsoft”). On May 30, 2013, I/P Engine entered into a settlement and license agreement with Microsoft to resolve the litigation. According to the
agreement, Microsoft paid I/P Engine $1,000,000 and agreed to pay 5% of any future amount Google pays for its use of the patents acquired from Lycos. The
parties also agreed to a limitation on Microsoft's total liability, which would not impact us unless the amounts received from Google substantially exceed the
judgment previously awarded. In addition, the parties entered into a patent assignment agreement, pursuant to which Microsoft assigned six patents to I/P
Engine. The assigned patents relate to telecommunications, data management, and other technology areas. The case number was 1:13 CV 00688.

Requests for reexamination are a standard tactic used by defendants in patent litigation cases. Google has filed four separate requests for
reexamination of the asserted patents at the USPTO, with the two requests on the '664 patent being merged. To date, three of the reexaminations have been
resolved in I/P Engine's favor. On December 13, 2013, the USPTO issued a reexamination certificate confirming that all of the claims of the '664 Patent
remain valid and unchanged. On September 13, 2013, the USPTO issued a reexamination certificate confirming that all of the claims of the '420 Patent
remain valid and unchanged. Thereafter, Google filed an additional request for reexamination of the '420 patent based solely on a single reference, a
reference that had been considered during one of the previous ‘664 Patent reexamination applications. On January 31, 2014, the USPTO issued a first, non-
final rejection of the challenged claims in the '420 Patent. I/P Engine is permitted to follow USPTO procedures to defend the validity of the '420 patent.
Documents regarding USPTO proceedings are publicly available on the Patent Application Information Retrieval website,
http://portal.uspto.gov/pair/PublicPair, which is operated by the USPTO.

Infrastructure Patents

On August 9, 2012, we entered into a patent purchase agreement with Nokia Corporation ("Nokia"), comprising of 124 patent families with
counterparts world-wide. We paid Nokia a cash payment of $22,000,000 and granted Nokia certain ongoing rights in revenues generated from the patent
portfolio. The portfolio encompasses technologies relating to telecom infrastructure, including communication management, data and signal transmission,
mobility management, radio resources management and services. Declarations were filed by Nokia indicating that 31 of the 124 patent families acquired may
be essential to  wireless communications standards. Copies of the declarations are available on our website at
http://www.vringoip.com/documents/FG/vringo/ip/99208 Nokia ETSI Declarations.pdf.

As one of the means of realizing the value of the patents on telecom infrastructure, our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Vringo Infrastructure, Inc.
(“Vringo Infrastructure”) and Vringo Germany GmbH (“Vringo Germany”) have filed a number of suits against ZTE Corporation (“ZTE”), ASUSTeK
Computer Inc. (“ASUS”), ADT Corporation (“ADT”) and Tyco Integrated Security, LLC (“Tyco”) and their subsidiaries and affiliates in the United States,
European jurisdictions, India and Australia, alleging infringement of certain U.S., European, Indian and Australian patents.

ZTE

On October 5, 2012, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a suit in the UK High Court of Justice, Chancery Division, Patents Court, alleging infringement of
European Patents (UK) 1,212,919; 1,166,589; and 1,808,029. ZTE’s formal response to the complaint was received on December 19, 2012 and included a
counterclaim for invalidity of the patents in suit. Vringo Infrastructure responded to the defense on January 16, 2013. Vringo Infrastructure filed a further UK
suit on December 3, 2012, alleging infringement of European Patents (UK) 1,221,212; 1,330,933; and 1,186,119. The first UK case will hold a trial in late
October 2014 and the second UK case will hold a trial in early June 2015.
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On November 15, 2012, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Mannheim Regional Court in Germany, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE)
1,212,919. The litigation was expanded to include a second patent on February 21, 2013, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 1,186,119. At the
Mannheim Court’s request, both cases were scheduled to be heard on the same day, October 15, 2013, but were later moved to November 12, 2013. On
November 4, 2013 we filed a further brief in the European Patent 1,212,919 proceedings introducing an additional independent patent claim and asserting
infringement by ZTE eNode B infrastructure equipment used in 4G networks. In light of the additional products accused, the European Patent 1,186,119 case
was heard on November 12, 2013 and the hearing in the European Patent 1,212,919 case was moved to April 28, 2014.

On December 17, 2013, the Court issued its judgment, finding that ZTE infringed European Patent 1,186,119 and ordered an accounting and an
injunction upon payment of the appropriate bonds. Vringo Germany paid in the bonds for the accounting, which is now in process. On February 19, 2014,
Vringo Germany filed suit in the Mannheim Regional Court seeking enforcement of the accounting ordered in European Patent 1,186,119 and a further order
that non-compliance be subject to civil and criminal penalties. Trial in this suit is scheduled for July 4, 2014.

On December 27, 2013, ZTE filed a notice of appeal of the Mannheim Regional Court’s judgment. On January 24, 2014, ZTE filed an emergency
motion with the Court of Appeals seeking a stay of the judge’s order pending appeal. On February 24, 2014, ZTE’s motion was denied.

On February 14, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 1,212,919 in the Federal Patents Court, Munich, Germany,
alleging invalidity of the patent. Trial in the nullity suit has not been scheduled but is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2014.

On May 3, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 1,186,119 in the Federal Patents Court in Munich, Germany. Trial in
the nullity suit has not been scheduled but is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2014.

On September 13, 2013, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Regional Court of Diisseldorf, alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,748,136.
The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

On December 20, 2013, ZTE filed a nullity suit with respect to European Patent (DE) 0,748,136 in the Federal Patents Court in Munich, Germany. A
schedule has not yet been set. Trial is not anticipated before the third quarter of 2015.

On January 28, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Regional Court of Diisseldorf alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,710,941.
The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

In November and December 2012, ZTE initiated invalidity proceedings in China against Chinese Patents ZL 00806049.5; ZL 00812876.6; and ZL
200480044232.1, before the Patent Reexamination Board of the Patent Office of the People’s Republic of China. These patents are the Chinese counterparts
of European Patents 1,166,589; 1,212,919; and 1,808,029. On July 3, 2013, the patent rights for ZL 200480044232.1 (counterpart to European Patent
1,808,029) were upheld. An oral hearing for Z1.00806049.5 (equivalent to European Patent 1,166,589) occurred on May 9, 2013 and a ruling is still pending.
An oral hearing for ZL 00812876.6 (equivalent to European Patent 1,212,919) was held on December 23, 2013, and a ruling is still pending.

On March 29, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit in France in the Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris, alleging
infringement of the French part of European Patents 1,186,119 and 1,221,212 by ZTE devices, which are believed to fall within the scope of these patents.
Vringo Infrastructure filed the lawsuit based on particular information uncovered during a seizure to obtain evidence of infringement, known as a saisie-
contrefacon, which was executed at two of ZTE's facilities in France. The oral hearing in relation to EP (FR) 1,186,119 and 1,221,212 has been scheduled for

December 8, 2014 before the 3™ division of the 3" chamber of the Tribunal de Grande Instance de Paris (specializing in IP matters).

On June 11, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the Federal Court of Australia in the New South Wales registry,
alleging infringement by ZTE of Australian Standard Patents AU 2005/212,893 and AU 773,182. We currently anticipate that the Court will set a trial date in
the second half of 2014.

On September 6, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a preliminary inquiry order against ZTE in the Commercial Court of Madrid, Spain, requiring
ZTE to provide discovery relating to alleged infringement of Spanish Patent 2220484 (EP (ES) 1,186,119). In light of ZTE’s non-responsiveness to the order,
on March 24, 2014 the Court granted our request to seek discovery of certain of ZTE’s Spanish customers.

On November 7, 2013, we and our subsidiary, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi,
India, alleging infringement of Indian patent 243,980. On November 8, 2013, the Court granted an ex-parte preliminary injunction and appointed
commissioners to inspect ZTE’s facilities and collect evidence. ZTE appealed the preliminary injunction and, on December 12, 2013, the appellate panel
instituted an interim arrangement, requiring ZTE to file an accounting affidavit disclosing the number of CDMA devices sold by its entities in India, revenue
derived therefrom, and other supporting documentation. The Court also required ZTE to pay a bond of 50 million rupees (approximately $800,000 USD),
directed Indian customs authorities to notify us when all relevant ZTE goods are imported into India, and required ZTE to give us the opportunity to inspect
those goods. ZTE filed its accounting affidavit on January 13, 2014. On February 3, 2014, we filed a motion for contempt for ZTE’s failure to comply with
the Court’s order, and requested that the Court order ZTE to pay an increased bond.

On January 31, 2014, we and our subsidiary, Vringo Infrastructure, filed a patent infringement lawsuit in the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi,
alleging infringement of Indian patent 200,572. The Court, finding a prima facie case of infringement, granted an ex-parte preliminary injunction, restraining
ZTE and its officers, directors, agents, distributors and customers from importing, selling, offering for sale, advertising, installing, or operating any infringing
products, and giving us the right to inspect any infringing goods arriving in India, which are to be detained by customs authorities. The judge granted the
injunction after ruling that we would suffer an irreparable loss if such an injunction were not put into place.

ASUS
On October 4, 2013, Vringo Germany filed a patent infringement lawsuit against ASUS in the Diisseldorf Regional Court, alleging infringement of

European Patent (DE) 0,748,136. The case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.
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On January 29, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a suit in the Diisseldorf Regional Court alleging infringement of European Patent (DE) 0,710,941. The
case is scheduled to be heard on November 27, 2014.

On February 7, 2014, Vringo Infrastructure, Inc. filed a suit in the Commercial Court of Barcelona alleging infringement of European Patent (ES)
0,748,136.

ADT/Tyco
On September 12, 2013, Vringo Infrastructure filed a patent infringement lawsuit against ADT and Tyco in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Florida. The lawsuit alleges infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,288,641, entitled "Assembly, and Associated Method, for Remotely

Monitoring a Surveillance Area."

On January 15, 2014, Vringo Germany filed a patent infringement lawsuit against Tyco in the Regional Court of Mannheim, alleging infringement of
European Patent 1,221,149, entitled “Process and Device for Surveillance of a Room.”

On January 28, 2014, Vringo Infrastructure announced that it had entered into a confidential agreement with ADT. The agreement resolved litigation
pending between the parties in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. Tyco remains a defendant in the ongoing litigation.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
PART I1

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock was listed on the NYSE MKT until April 29, 2013 under the symbol “VRNG.” As of April 30, 2013, our common stock is listed

on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the same symbol “VRNG.” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for
our common stock as reported by the NYSE MKT and the NASDAQ Capital Market:

High Low
Year ended December 31, 2013
First quarter $ 383 $ 2.70
Second quarter 3.50 2.65
Third quarter 3.90 2.61
Fourth quarter $ 334 $ 2.64
High Low
Year ended December 31, 2012
First quarter $ 219 $ 0.68
Second quarter 5.45 1.80
Third quarter 4.32 2.78
Fourth quarter $ 573 $ 1.75

Our public warrants were listed on the NYSE MKT until April 30, 2013 under the symbol “VRNGW.” As of April 30, 2013, our public warrants were listed
on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the same symbol “VRNGW.” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices
for our public warrants as reported by the NYSE MKT and the NASDAQ Capital Market:

High Low
Year ended December 31, 2013
First quarter $ 145 $ 1.00
Second quarter 1.54 0.85
Third quarter 1.49 0.79
Fourth quarter $ 1.38 $ 0.82
High Low
Year ended December 31, 2012
First quarter $ 0.70 $ 0.04
Second quarter 1.45 0.42
Third quarter 1.85 0.85
Fourth quarter $ 325 % 0.53

Stockholders

As of February 21, 2014, we had 16 stockholders of record of the 85,797,826 outstanding shares of our common stock. This does not reflect persons
or entities that hold their stock in nominee or "street" name through various brokerage firms.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock, and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our capital stock in the
foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance our operations and to expand our business. Any future determination to pay



cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial condition, operating results, capital requirements
and other factors that our board of directors considers appropriate.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not required for smaller reporting companies.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its
entirety by, our consolidated financial statements (including notes to the consolidated financial statements) and the other consolidated financial information
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis, including information with respect
to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and timing of events could
differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

Overview

We were incorporated in Delaware on January 9, 2006 and commenced operations during the first quarter of 2006. In March 2006, we formed a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Vringo (Israel) Ltd., for the primary purpose of providing research and development services. On July 19, 2012, Innovate/Protect,
Inc., (“I/P”) merged with us through an exchange of equity instruments of I/P for those of Vringo (the “Merger”). The Merger was accounted for as a reverse
acquisition pursuant to which I/P was considered the accounting acquirer of Vringo. As such, the financial statements of I/P are treated as the historical
financial statements of the combined company, with the results of Vringo included from July 19, 2012.

Our business strives to develop, acquire, license and protect innovation worldwide. We are currently focused on identifying, generating, acquiring,
and driving economic benefits from intellectual property assets. Our intellectual property portfolio consists of over 500 patents and patent applications
covering telecom infrastructure, internet search and mobile technologies. Our patents and patent applications have been developed internally and acquired
from third parties. We plan to continue to expand our portfolio of intellectual property assets through acquiring and internally developing new technologies.
We intend to monetize our technology portfolio through a variety of value enhancing initiatives, including, but not limited to:

. licensing,
. strategic partnerships, and
. litigation.

Prior to December 31, 2013, we operated a global platform for the distribution of mobile social applications and services. On December 31, 2013,
we entered into a definitive agreement to sell our mobile social application business. In February 2014, we consummated the sale of this business.

We are still a development stage company. From the inception of I/P on June 8, 2011 (“Inception”) to date, we have raised approximately
$97,403,000. These amounts have been used to finance our operations, as until now, we have not yet generated any significant revenues. From Inception
through December 31, 2013, we recorded losses of approximately $76,028,000 and net cash used in operations was approximately $39,461,000. Our average
monthly use of cash from operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $1,955,000 and $1,205,000, respectively. This is
not necessarily indicative of the future use of our working capital.

Revenue

Revenue from patent licensing and enforcement is recognized when collection is reasonably assured, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
the sales price is fixed or determinable and delivery of the service has been rendered. We use management's best estimate of selling price for individual
elements in multiple-element arrangements, where vendor specific evidence or third party evidence of selling price is not available.

Operating legal costs

Operating legal costs mainly include the costs and expenses incurred in connection with our patent licensing and enforcement activities, patent-
related legal expenses paid to external patent counsel (including contingent legal fees), licensing and enforcement related research, consulting and other
expenses paid to third parties, as well as internal payroll expenses, stock-based compensation, and the amortization of acquired patents.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses consisted primarily of the cost of our development and operations personnel, as well as of the cost of
outsourced development services.

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses include management and administrative personnel, public and investor relations, overhead/office costs and

various professional fees, as well as insurance, non-operational depreciation and amortization.
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Non-operating income (expenses)

Non-operating income (expenses) includes transaction gains (losses) from foreign exchange rate differences, interest on deposits, bank charges, as
well as fair value adjustments of derivative liabilities on account of the Preferential Reload Warrants, Special Bridge Warrants, Series 1 Warrants and the
Conversion Warrants. The value of such derivative warrants is highly influenced by assumptions used in its valuation, as well as by our stock price at the
period end (revaluation date).

Income taxes

Our effective tax rate differs from the statutory federal rate primarily due to differences between income and expense recognition prescribed by
income tax regulations and generally accepted accounting principles. We utilize different methods and useful lives for depreciating and amortizing property
and equipment and different methods and timing for certain expenses. Furthermore, permanent differences arise from certain income and expense items
recorded for financial reporting purposes but not recognizable for income tax purposes. At December 31, 2013, deferred tax assets generated from our U.S.
activities were mostly offset by a valuation allowance because realization depends on generating future taxable income, which, in our estimation, is not more
likely than not to be generated before such net operating loss carryforwards expire.

Prior to the sale of our mobile social application business, our subsidiary in Israel generated net taxable income from services it provided to us. The
subsidiary in Israel charged us for research, development, certain management and other services provided to us, plus a profit margin on such costs, which
was 8%. In the zone where the production facilities of the subsidiary in Israel were located, the statutory tax rate was 12.5% in 2013. In addition, our income
tax expense has been adjusted for the effect of foreign income from our wholly-owned subsidiary in Israel. The deferred tax assets and liabilities generated
from our subsidiary in Israel’s operations are not offset by an allowance, as in our estimation, they are more likely than not to be realized.

Results of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 and the development stage period (cumulative from Inception through
December 31, 2013)

Revenue
Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
Revenue $ 1,100,000 $ 100,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,200,000

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded total revenue (excluding mobile social application business revenue included
within discontinued operations) of $1,100,000, which represents an increase of $1,000,000 (or 1,000%) from revenues recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase was due to revenue from a one-time payment in connection with the license and settlement agreement entered into
with Microsoft, as disclosed in Note 10 to our accompanying consolidated financial statements. In 2012, our revenue consisted of proceeds from a
partial settlement with AOL in the total amount of $100,000.

We seek to generate revenue through the monetization of our intellectual property through licensing, strategic partnerships and litigation,
when required, which may be resolved through a settlement or collection. We also intend to continue to expand our planned operations through
acquisitions and monetization of additional patents, other intellectual property or operating business. In particular, following the incorporation of our
subsidiary in Germany and the acquisition of a patent portfolio from Nokia, we intend to continue to expand our intellectual property monetization
efforts worldwide.

We anticipate that our legal proceedings may continue for several years and may require significant expenditures for legal fees and other
expenses. Disputes regarding the assertion of patents and other intellectual property rights are highly complex and technical.

Operating legal costs

Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
Amortization of intangibles $ 3,445,000 $ 1,692,000 $ 1,753,000 $ 5,465,000
Operating legal $ 21,590,000 $ 10,010,000 $ 11,580,000 $ 32,833,000
Total $ 25035000 $ 11,702,000 $ 13,333,000 $ 38,298,000

During the year ended December 31, 2013, our operating legal costs were $25,035,000, which represents an increase of $13,333,000 (or
114%) from operating legal costs recorded for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase was mainly related to consulting and litigation costs
($20,369,000, compared to $9,487,000 in 2012), mostly in connection with our worldwide proceedings against ZTE, which commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2012. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in litigation costs relating to proceedings against Google. Further, stock-based
compensation costs increased ($1,221,000, compared to $523,000 in 2012) due to our efforts to increase our in-house legal department staff. The
increase in amortization expense of intangibles ($3,445,000, compared to $1,692,000 in 2012) was mainly due to a full year of amortization of the
patents acquired from Nokia, compared to partial year amortization in 2012.

From Inception through December 31, 2013, operating legal costs expenses amounted to $38,298,000. Of this amount, $1,744,000 was
attributed to stock-based compensation to employees, management and consultants, $31,089,000 was attributed to operating legal expenses, mainly
related to patent litigations against Google and ZTE, and $5,465,000 was attributed to patent amortization.
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It is not certain whether our operating legal costs will increase over time. Though we aim to diversify our portfolio of products and increase
our intellectual property monetization efforts, we have also increased the size of our in-house legal and technical team. The goal is to decrease our
overall legal expenses by bringing more work in-house, which we believe will cost less than outsourcing to external firms. There is no guarantee,
however, that an in-house team will be less expensive or more efficient than outsourcing this work. Moreover, as we expand the scope of our
monetization efforts, the amount of legal work will increase leading to a concomitant increase in our operating legal costs, regardless of if such work
is performed in-house or outsourced.

Research and development

Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
Research and development $ 1,512,000 $ 543,000 $ 969,000 $ 2,055,000

During the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, our research and development expenses (excluding mobile social application business
research and development expense included within discontinued operations) amounted to $1,512,000 and $543,000, respectively. The increase of
$969,000 (or 178%) was primarily due to increased development team cost ($520,000, compared to $173,000 in 2012), and related non-cash, stock-
based compensation cost ($470,000, compared to $366,000 in 2012). In addition, this increase was due to an increase in consulting costs ($499,000,
compared to $0 in 2012).

From Inception through December 31, 2013, research and development expenses, in the total amount of $2,055,000, recorded following the
Merger with I/P, consist primarily of labor related cost of $693,000, consulting expenses of $499,000 and related stock-based compensation cost of
$836,000.

In February 2014, we sold our mobile social application business to Infomedia. As part of the agreement, our then remaining research and
development personnel were assumed by Infomedia. Should we seek to introduce new products or new business opportunities, such as a merger or

acquisition relating to our intellectual property or other technology, we expect that our research and development costs would increase.

General and administrative

Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
General and administrative $ 15,330,000 $ 10,226,000 $ 5,104,000 $ 26,741,000

During the year ended December 31, 2013, general and administrative expenses increased by $5,104,000 (or 50%), to $15,330,000, from
$10,226,000 recorded during the year ended December 31, 2012. General and administrative expenses increased mostly due to an increase in payroll
expense ($2,349,000, compared to $1,301,000 in 2012), an increase in stock-based compensation expense ($10,037,000, compared to $6,731,000 in
2012), and increased various professional fees ($2,093,000, compared to $1,544,000 in 2012).

From Inception through December 31, 2013, general and administrative expenses amounted to $26,741,000. Of that amount, $3,869,000
was attributed to salaries and related expenses, $17,242,000 was attributed to stock-based payments and $5,630,000 was attributed to various
professional fees.

We expect that our general and administrative expenses will increase, as our expenses will incorporate full costs of our management and
administration, as well as increased rent, office, accounting, legal and insurance costs. New merger and acquisition opportunities, should such arise,

may also significantly increase our general and administrative costs.

Non-operating income (expense), net

Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
Non-operating income (expense), net $ (971,000) $ 3,962,000 $ (4,933,000) $ 2,983,000

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded non-operating expense in the amount of $971,000, compared to non-operating
income in the amount of $3,962,000 recorded in the year ended December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded
approximately $421,000 of income related to a decrease in the fair value of our derivative warrant liabilities. In addition, as part of the issuance of
October 2012 Warrants, the down-round protection clauses in certain then outstanding Series 1 Warrants were removed. The impact of the removal
of the down-round warrant protection, which was not material, was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2013. As a result of the removal of
the down-round warrant protection, we recorded an additional, non-operating expense of $1,617,000. Following the Merger, our non-operating
income, net, included mainly the impact of changes in the fair value of derivative warrants, the fair value of which is highly affected by our share
price at the measurement date. Consequently, as of December 31, 2012, we recorded income of $6,847,000 due to the decrease of our share price,
compared to the share price on the date of the Merger.

In addition, in October 2012, we entered into an agreement with certain of our warrant holders, pursuant to which such warrant holders
exercised in cash 3,721,062 of their outstanding warrants, with an exercise price of $1.76 per share, and we issued such warrant holders unregistered
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3,000,000 of our shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, at an exercise price of $5.06 per share.



The newly issued warrants do not bear down-round protection clauses. As a result of this issuance, additional non-operational expense in the total
amount of $2,883,000 was recorded (refer to Note 9 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements).
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We expect that our non-operating income (expense) will remain highly volatile, and we may choose to fund our operations through
additional financing. In particular, non-operating income (expense) will be affected by the adjustments to fair value of our derivative instruments.
Fair value of these derivative instruments depends on a variety of assumptions, such as estimations regarding triggering of down-round protection
and estimated future share price. An estimated increase in the price of our common stock increases the value of the warrants and thus results in a loss
on our statement of operations. In addition, high estimated probability of a down-round protection increases the value of the warrants and again
results in a loss on our statement of operations. Also refer to Note 9 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Loss from discontinued mobile social application operations

Cumulative from

Inception through
As of December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013
$ 224,000 $ 269,000 $ (45,000) $ 493,000
Operating expenses (3,334,000) (2,666,000) (668,000) (6,000,000)
Loss on impairment (7,253,000) — (7,253,000) (7,253,000)
Operating loss (10,363,000) (2,397,000) (7,966,000) (12,760,000)
Non-operating income (expense) (65,000) 20,000 (85,000) (45,000)
Loss before taxes on income (10,428,000) (2,377,000) (8,051,000) (12,805,000)
Income tax expense (257,000) (55,000) (202,000) (312,000)
Loss from discontinued operations $ (10,685,000) $ (2,432,000) $ (8,253,000) $ (13,117,000)

On February 18, 2014, we executed the sale of our mobile social application business to Infomedia, in exchange for 18 Class B shares of
Infomedia, which represent an 8.25% ownership interest. The Infomedia Class B shares were accounted for as a cost-method investment. Cash
requirements for termination of mobile operations include mainly post-employment obligations, which are expected to be incurred in the first quarter
of 2014, and are considered to be immaterial. We expect the consummation of the sale agreement to reduce our annual cost and cash used in
operations, by approximately $3,000,000 per annum.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded revenues of $224,000, which represents a decrease of $45,000 (or -17%) from
revenues recorded for the year ended December 31, 2012. Mobile revenue recorded in 2012 only reflect our revenue from the day of the Merger.
Mobile revenue in 2013 decreased, compared to 2012, mainly due to a one-time development project with Nokia, for a total amount of $100,000,
recorded in 2012. In 2013, due to the change in mobile strategy for Nokia and its announced sale of its handset business to Microsoft, there was
significant impact on the personnel and budgets dedicated to development partner relations, such as the one previously enjoyed by Vringo. As a
result, no new revenue contracts were issued for app customization on Nokia devices during 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, operating expenses increased by $668,000 (or 25%), to $3,334,000, from $2,666,000 recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2012. Operating expenses increased mostly due to full year amortization of our technology, the value to which
was allocated upon consummation of the Merger ($1,688,000 amortization expense, compared to $763,000 in 2012). This increase was partially
offset by the decrease in stock-based compensation costs ($365,000, compared to $467,000 in 2012).

During the fourth quarter of 2013, an impairment loss of $7,253,000 was recorded in connection with the sale of our mobile social
application business, which represents the excess of the carrying value (which includes the portion of goodwill allocated to the mobile social
application business) over the estimated fair value of the related asset group. The fair value of the related asset group was estimated using an income
approach by developing a discounted future net cash flows model. Refer to Note 7 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further
discussion of the accounting related to this transaction.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded income tax expense of $257,000, which represents an increase of $202,000 (or
354%) from income tax expense recorded for the year ended December 31, 2012. In general, current taxes on income are mainly due to taxable
profits generated by our subsidiary in Israel, as a result of the intercompany cost plus agreement between us and the subsidiary in Israel, whereby the
subsidiary in Israel performs development and other services for us and is reimbursed for its expenses plus 8% profit. For financial statements
purposes, these profits are eliminated upon consolidation.

Taxes on Income

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately $88,204,000 in aggregate total net tax loss carryforwards ("NOL") for U.S. federal, state
and local purposes expiring 20 years from the respective tax years to which they relate (beginning with 2006 for the Legal Parent and 2011 for I/P).
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposed substantial restrictions on the utilization of NOL and tax credits in the event of an ownership change of a
corporation. Thus, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code, Section 382, our initial public offering, financing activities, as well as the Merger,
may limit the Company's ability to utilize all such NOL and credit carryforwards.

We file our tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as in various state and local jurisdictions. Vringo has open tax assessments for
the years 2010 through 2013. As of December 31, 2013, all tax assessments for I/P are still open. The Israeli subsidiary files its income tax returns in
Israel. As of December 31, 2013, the Israeli subsidiary has open tax assessments for the years 2010 through 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, with the sale of our mobile social application business, and its classification as assets held to sale, we do not
meet the criteria for the exception of indefinite reversal criteria for its Israeli subsidiary. We did not record any additional material provisions related
to such event.

A valuation allowance has been recorded against the net deferred tax asset in the U.S., as it is in the opinion of the Company’s management
that it is more likely than not that the operating loss carryforwards will not be utilized in the foreseeable future. No valuation allowance has been
provided for the deferred tax assets of the Israeli subsidiary, since they are more likely than not to be realized.

We file our tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as in various state and local jurisdictions. Vringo, Inc. has open tax
assessments for the years 2010 through 2013. As of December 31, 2013, all tax assessments for Innovate/Protect are still open. The Israeli subsidiary
files its income tax returns in Israel. As of December 31, 2013, the Israeli subsidiary has open tax assessments for the years 2010 through 2013.



We did not have any material unrecognized tax benefits in 2013 and 2012. We do not expect to record any additional material provisions for
unrecognized tax benefits within the next year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2013, we had a cash balance of $33,586,000 and $29,340,000 in net working capital. The decrease of $23,374,000 in
our cash balance from December 31, 2012, was mainly due to net cash used by us in our business operations, in the total amount of approximately
$23,462,000 and $1,420,000 used to acquire patents. This decrease was slightly offset by $1,564,000 received from the exercise of options and
warrants. As of December 31, 2013, our total stockholders' equity was $114,282,000, mainly decreased by continuing operating deficits from
Inception to date.
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, a total of 435,783 warrants to purchase an aggregate of 435,783 shares of our common stock, at
an exercise price range from $0.94 to $1.76 per share, were exercised by our warrant holders, pursuant to which we received an additional $590,522.
In addition, 2,177,644 options and restricted stock units (“RSUs”), collectively, to purchase 2,177,644 shares of our common stock, issued to
consultants, employees, directors and management, were exercised or vested, as applicable. As a result, we received an additional $973,986. In
addition, during 2014 through February 21, 2014, 626,805 warrants to purchase an aggregate of 626,805 shares of our common stock, at an exercise
price of $1.76 per share, were exercised by our warrant holders, pursuant to which we received an additional $1,103,177. In addition, 699,606
options and RSUs, collectively, to purchase 699,606 shares of our common stock, issued to employees, directors and management, were exercised or
vested, as applicable. As a result, we received an additional $1,455,066.

As of February 21, 2014, we had approximately $30,378,000 in cash and cash equivalents. Based on current operating plans, we expect to
have sufficient funds for our operations for at least the next twelve months. In addition, until we generate sufficient revenue, we may need to raise
additional funds, which can be achieved through exercise of outstanding warrants and options, issuance of additional equity or through loans from
financial institutions. There can be no assurance, however, that any such opportunities will materialize.

We anticipate that we will continue to search for additional sources of liquidity, when needed, until we generate positive cash flow to
support our operations. We cannot give any assurance that the necessary capital will be raised or that, if funds are raised, it will be on favorable
terms. Any future sales of securities to finance our operations may require stockholder approval and will dilute existing stockholders' ownership. We
cannot guarantee when or if we will ever generate positive cash flow.

Cash flows
Cumulative
from Inception
through
Year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 Change 2013

Net cash used in operating activities $  (23,465,000) $ (14,468,000) $  (8,997,000) $ (39,461,000)
Net cash used in investing activities $  (1,636,000) $ (19,476,000) $ 17,840,000 $ (24,517,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 1,564,000 $ 85,694,000 $ (84,130,000) $ 97,403,000

Operating activities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash used in operating activities totaled $23,465,000. During the year ended December 31,
2012, net cash used in operating activities totaled $14,468,000. The $8,997,000 increase in net cash used in operating activities was mainly due to
increased litigation costs, as well as an increase in cost of our in-house staff.

We expect our net cash used in operating activities to increase due to further development of our business. As we expect to move towards
greater revenue generation, we expect that these amounts will be offset over time by collection of revenue.

Investing activities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash used in investing activities totaled $1,636,000. During the year ended December 31,
2012, net cash used in investing activities totaled $19,476,000. The decrease in cash used in investing activities, in the total amount of $17,840,000,
was primarily due to a patent purchase in the total amount of $1,420,000, compared to the cost of patents acquired from Nokia in 2012, for
$22,548,000. Fixed asset purchases in the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to $23,000 compared to $208,000 for the year ended December
31, 2012, due to post-Merger relocation of our headquarters and the development of internal technology infrastructure in 2012. In addition, in 2012,
cash used in investing activities was offset by $3,326,000 recorded in connection with the consummation of the Merger.

We expect that net cash used in investing activities will increase as we intend to continue to acquire additional intellectual property assets
and invest surplus cash, according to our investment policy.

Financing activities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash provided by financing activities totaled $1,564,000, which relates to funds received
from the exercise of warrants and options in the total amount of $590,000 and $974,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2012, net
cash provided by financing activities totaled $85,694,000, which relates to the August and October registered direct financings, in which we raised
approximately, $31,148,000 and $44,962,000, respectively, offset by repayment of note payable to Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd., in the total
amount of $3,200,000 and funds received from the exercise of warrants and options in the total amount of $12,784,000.

As mentioned above, a significant portion of our issued and outstanding warrants are currently “in the money” and the shares of common
stock underlying such warrants held by non-affiliates are freely tradable, with, as of December 31, 2013, the potential of up to $18,703,114 of
additional incoming funds. We may choose to raise additional funds in connection with any acquisition of patent portfolios or other intellectual
property assets that we may pursue. There can be no assurance, however, that any such opportunity will materialize, and moreover, any such
financing would likely be dilutive to our current stockholders.
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Future operations

We are currently pursuing several potential strategic partners and have identified patent portfolios, other intellectual property assets and operating
businesses that we may wish to acquire. In addition, we are continuing to explore further opportunities for strategic business alliances. However, there can be
no assurance that any such opportunities will be consummated.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

From October 2012 through December 31, 2013, our subsidiaries filed patent infringement lawsuits against the subsidiaries of ZTE Corporation in
the United Kingdom, France, Germany, and Australia. Should we be deemed the losing party in any of its applications to the court in the UK, we may be held
responsible for a portion of the defendant’s legal fees for the relevant application or for the litigation. Pursuant to negotiation with ZTE’s UK subsidiary, in
the United Kingdom, we placed two written commitments to ensure the payment of a potential liability by Vringo Infrastructure resulting for the two cases
filed in the fourth quarter of 2012 and second quarter of 2013, which the defendants estimated to be approximately $2,900,000 each. In addition, we may be
required to grant additional written commitments, as necessary, in connection with our commenced proceedings against ZTE Corporation in Europe and
Australia. It should be noted, however, that if we were successful on any court applications or the entirety of any litigation, ZTE Corporation would be
responsible for a substantial portion of our legal fees.

Other than the arrangements described in the preceding paragraph, we have no obligations, assets or liabilities which would be considered off-
balance sheet arrangements. We do not participate in transactions that create relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, often referred
to as variable interest entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies

While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013, we believe the following accounting policies to be the most critical in understanding the judgments and estimates we used in preparing
our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Our long-lived assets include property and equipment and amortizable intangible assets. In assessing the recoverability of these long-lived assets, the
company must make estimates and assumptions regarding future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets. These
estimates and assumptions could have a significant impact on whether an impairment charge is recognized and also the magnitude of any such charge. Fair
value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant information. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgments and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. If these
estimates or material related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges related to our long-lived assets.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we recorded an impairment loss of $7,045,000 related to technology assets in connection with the sale of our
mobile social application business, which was completed in February 2014. This amount was calculated based upon a discounted future cash flows model.
Significant judgments and assumptions inherent in a discounted cash flow valuation include the selection of appropriate discount rates, estimating the amount
and timing of estimated future cash flows and identification of appropriate continuing growth rate assumptions. The discount rates used in the analysis are
intended to reflect the risk inherent in the projected future cash flows generated by the respective asset group. Such judgments and assumptions, particularly
related to mobile technology, are sensitive to rapid changes in the industry and technological advances.

Goodwill

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually, and when triggering events occur, in accordance with the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. We
have one reporting unit for purposes of evaluating goodwill impairment.

The company has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine if an impairment is more likely than not to have occurred. If the
company can support the conclusion that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the company
would not need to perform the two-step impairment test for the reporting unit. If the company cannot support such a conclusion or the company does not elect
to perform the qualitative assessment then the first step of the goodwill impairment test is used to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value of
the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, then step two of the
impairment test (measurement) does not need to be performed. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill
impairment exists for the reporting unit and the entity must perform step two of the impairment test. Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined
by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to an acquisition price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using certain valuation techniques in addition to the company’s
market capitalization.
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We performed our annual impairment test of goodwill as of December 31, 2013. Based on this test, we did not recognize an impairment charge
related to goodwill since the fair value of the reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value. The fair value as of December 31, 2013 was
approximated to be $250,127,000, exceeding the carrying value by 118%. We did however recognize an impairment charge related to goodwill of
approximately $208,000 during the fourth quarter of 2013 in connection with the sale of our mobile social application business. Refer to Note 7 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2013, we had 21,198 Special Bridge Warrants and 14,491 Conversion Warrants at an exercise price of $0.94, with a fair value of
$43,000 and $30,000, respectively. In addition, we had 160,609 Preferential Reload Warrants and 2,303,717 Series 1 Warrants at an exercise price of $1.76,
with a fair value of $255,000 and $3,755,000, respectively. (Refer to Note 9 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements). The following table
represents the assumptions, valuation models and inputs used, as of December 31, 2013:

Valuation Unobservable
Description Technique Inputs Range

Special Bridge Warrants, Conversion Warrants, Black-Scholes-Merton and the Monte-Carlo Volatility 46.85% — 52.63%

Preferential Reload Warrants and the models

outstanding derivative Series 1 Warrants
Risk free interest rate 0.16% - 1.11%
Expected term, in years 0.99 —3.55
Dividend yield 0%
Probability and timing of down- 5% occurrence in
round triggering event December 2014

Had we made different assumptions about the risk-free interest rate, volatility, the impact of the down-round provision, or the estimated time that the
abovementioned warrants will be outstanding before they are ultimately exercised, the recorded expense, our net loss and net loss per share amounts could
have been significantly different.

Accounting for Stock-based Compensation

We measure compensation cost for stock-based awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognize the cost over the service period in which the
awards are expected to vest. For options granted to consultants, the measurement date of the option is the earlier of counterparty performance or performance
commitment. Such options are revalued at every reporting date until the measurement date. The estimation of stock-based awards that will ultimately vest
requires judgment, and to the extent actual results differ from our estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cuamulative adjustment in the period estimates
are revised. We consider various factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including historical experience. Actual results may differ substantially from
these estimates.

We determine the fair value of stock options granted to employees, directors and consultants using the Black-Scholes-Merton and the Monte-Carlo
(for grants that include market conditions) valuation models. Those models require us to make significant assumptions regarding the expected stock price
volatility, the risk-free interest rate and the dividend yield, and the estimated period of time option grants will be outstanding before they are ultimately
exercised. Since the Merger occurred on July 19, 2012, we still lack sufficient history to use our own historical volatility; as a result, we estimate our expected
stock volatility based on historical stock volatility from comparable companies. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve at the date of grant.

The various inputs and assumptions utilized in connection with our option pricing models are highly subjective. Had we made different assumptions
about the risk-free interest rate, expected stock price, volatility, or the estimated time that the options will be outstanding before they are ultimately exercised,
the recorded expense, our net loss and net loss per share amounts could have been significantly different.

Accounting for Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. This process involves management estimating our actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our
consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent we
believe that recovery is not more likely than not, we must establish a valuation allowance. Significant management judgment is required in determining our
provision for income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets. As part of the
Merger purchase price allocation, we recorded a deferred tax liability in connection with the acquired technology. This deferred tax liability was offset by a
deferred tax asset in the same amount. The deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax loss carryforwards has been offset by a valuation allowance. Our
lack of earnings history and the uncertainty surrounding our ability to generate U.S. taxable income prior to the expiration of such deferred tax assets were the
primary factors considered by management in establishing the valuation allowance.

FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, prescribes how a company should recognize, measure, present and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax
positions that the company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. Additionally, for tax positions to qualify for deferred tax benefit recognition under
ASC 740, the position must have at least a “more likely than not” chance of being sustained upon challenge by the respective taxing authorities, which criteria
is a matter of significant judgment.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11
requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of those
arrangements on its financial position, and to allow investors to better compare financial statements prepared under U.S. GAAP with financial statements
prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The new standards are effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2013, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Retrospective application is required. We adopted the guidance as of January 1, 2013, as required. There was no
material impact on our consolidated financial statements resulting from the adoption.
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Impact of Recently Issued But Not yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar
Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which provides guidance on the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. This guidance requires an entity to
present an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, except as follows: to the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward
is not available at the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would result from the
disallowance of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred
tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred
tax assets. This guidance is effective for us beginning January 1, 2014 and should be applied prospectively with retroactive application permitted. We are
currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our consolidated financial statements, but we do not expect such impact to be material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our Consolidated Financial Statements required by this Item are set forth in Item 15 beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures:

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, have concluded that, based on such evaluation, our disclosure controls and procedures are designed at a
reasonable assurance level and are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, identified in connection with the evaluation of such internal control that
occurred during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992

framework). Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2013.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Somekh Chaikin, a member firm of KPMG International, has issued an audit report
on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, which appears in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information called for by this Item may be found in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC under the captions “Management and Corporate Governance Matters,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,”
and “Code of Conduct and Ethics” is incorporated by reference in this Item 10.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information called for by this Item may be found in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC under the captions “Executive Officer and Director Compensation” and “Management and Corporate Governance” and is incorporated

by reference in this Item 11.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Information called for by this Item may be found in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information”
and is incorporated by reference in this Item 12.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information called for by this Item may be found in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions” and “Management and Corporate Governance” and is
incorporated by reference in this Item 13.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information called for by this Item may be found in our definitive Proxy Statement in connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” and is incorporated by reference in this Item 14.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements. For the financial statements included in this annual report, see “Index to the Financial Statements” on page F-1.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules. All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or because the required information is shown under Item 8,
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(a)(3) Exhibits. The list of exhibits filed as a part of this annual report is set forth on the Exhibit Index immediately preceding such exhibits and is
incorporated by reference in this Item 15(a)(3).

(b) Exhibits. See Exhibit Index.

(c) Separate Financial Statements and Schedules. None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Vringo, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Vringo, Inc. and subsidiaries (a development stage company) (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 and for the period from June 8, 2011 (inception) to December 31, 2013. We also have audited Vringo Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992), issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Vringo, Inc. and subsidiaries (a development stage company) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years then ended, and for the cumulative period from June 8, 2011 (date of inception) to December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).

/s/ Somekh Chaikin
A member firm of KPMG International

Jerusalem, Israel
March 10, 2014
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Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,586 $ 56,960
Assets held for sale 787 —
Other current assets 455 469
Total current assets 34,828 57,429
Long-term deposits 247 54
Property and equipment, net 230 294
Intangible assets, net 22,748 34,044
Goodwill 65,757 65,965
Total assets $ 123,810 $ 157,786
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 5,146 $ 1,444
Accrued employee compensation 299 398
Derivative liabilities on account of warrants 43 —
Total current liabilities 5,488 1,842
Long-term liabilities
Derivative liabilities on account of warrants 4,040 7,612
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders’ equity
Series A Convertible Preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share; 5,000,000

authorized; none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value per share 150,000,000 and 100,000,000

authorized; 84,502,653 and 81,889,226 issued and outstanding as

of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively 845 819
Additional paid-in capital 189,465 171,108
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (76,028) (23,595)
Total stockholders’ equity 114,282 148,332
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 123,810 $ 157,786

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-3




Revenue

Costs and Expenses*

Operating legal costs

Research and development

General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating loss from continuing operations

Non-operating income

Non-operating expenses

Issuance of warrants

Gain (loss) on revaluation of warrants

Loss from continuing operations before taxes on income

Income tax expense

Loss from continuing operations

Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands except share and per share data)

For the year ended December 31,

Cumulative from
June 8, 2011
(Inception) through
December 31,

Loss from discontinued operations (including the impairment

loss of $7,253 and $0 in 2013 and 2012, respectively)*

Income tax expense
Loss from discontinued operations

Net loss
Loss per share:
Basic
Loss per share from continuing operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations
Total net loss per share
Diluted
Loss per share from continuing operations
Loss per share from discontinued operations
Total net loss per share

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the year:

Basic
Diluted

* Includes stock-based compensation expense, as follows:

Operating legal costs
Research and development
General and administrative
Discontinued operations

2013 2012
$ 1,100 $ 100 1,200
25,035 11,702 38,298
1,512 543 2,055
15,330 10,226 26,741
41,877 22,471 67,094
(40,777) (22,371) (65,894)
245 18 263
(20) (20) (48)
— (2,883) (2,883)
(1,196) 6,847 5,651
(41,748) (18,409) (62,911)
$ (41,748) (18,409) (62,911)
(10,428) (2,377) (12,805)
(257) (55) (312)
(10,685) (2,432) (13,117)
$ (52,433) (20,841) (76,028)
$ (0.50) (0.47) (1.26)
(0.13) (0.06) (0.26)
$ (0.63) (0.53) (1.52)
$ (0.50) (0.55) (1.28)
(0.13) (0.06) (0.26)
$ (0.63) (0.61) (1.54)
83,201,691 39,111,176 50,105,473
83,280,873 41,664,676 51,618,897
$ 1,221 523 1,744
470 366 836
10,037 6,731 17,242
365 467 832
$ 12,093 8,087 20,654

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)
Deficit
accumulated
during the
Additional development
Common stock paid-in capital stage Total

Balance as of June 8, 2011 (Inception) $ — % — $ — % —
Issuance of shares of common stock 170 4,975 — 5,145
Stock-based compensation — 474 — 474
Net loss for the period — — (2,754) (2,754)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 170 5,449 (2,754) 2,865
Conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred stock,

classified as mezzanine equity 8 68 — 76
Stock-based compensation, including grant of shares

to consultants 3 8,084 — 8,087
Recording of equity instruments upon Merger, net of

fair value of issued warrants $21,954 and issuance cost

of $463 (refer to Note 6) 152 54,809 — 54,961
Issuance of warrants (refer to Note 9) — 2,883 — 2,883
Conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred stock,

classified as equity 201 (201) — —
Exercise of warrants 76 22,856 — 22,932
Exercise of stock options 8 501 — 509
Issuance of shares in connection with a financing

round, net of issuance cost of $52 96 31,052 — 31,148
Shares issued for acquisition of patents (refer to Note 5) 2 748 — 750
Issuance of shares in connection with a financing round,

net of issuance cost of $39 103 44,859 — 44,962
Net loss for the year — — (20,841) (20,841)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 819 171,108 (23,595) 148,332
Exercise of stock options and vesting of Restricted Stock

Units (“RSUs”) 22 952 — 974
Exercise of warrants 4 1,394 — 1,398
Conversion of derivative warrants into equity warrants — 3,918 — 3,918
Stock-based compensation — 12,093 — 12,093
Net loss for the year — — (52,433) (52,433)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 845 $ 189,465 $ (76,028) $ 114,282

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net cash flows used in operating activities:
Items not affecting cash flows

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment loss

Change in deferred tax assets and liabilities
Stock-based compensation expense

Issuance of warrants

Assignment of patents

Change in fair value of warrants

Exchange rate loss (gain), net

Changes in current assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables, prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase in payables and accruals

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of patents

Increase in deposits

Cash acquired as part of acquisition of Vringo (1)
Net cash used in investing activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(In thousands)
Cumulative from
June 8, 2011
(Inception)
through
For the year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013

$ (52,433) $ (20,841) $ (76,028)

5,220 2,501 8,050

7,253 — 7,253
= (58) (58)

12,093 8,087 20,654

— 2,883 2,883
(100) — (100)
1,196 (6,847) (5,651)
97) 8 (89)
(135) (208) (369)

3,538 7 3,994
(23,465) (14,468) (39,461)
(23) (208) (240)
(1,420) (22,548) (27,364)
(193) (46) (239)

— 3,326 3,326
$ (1,636) $ (19,476) $ (24,517)
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Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cumulative from
June 8, 2011

(Inception)
through
For the year ended December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance

cost of $52 $ —  $ 31,148 $ 31,148
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance

cost of $39 — 44,962 44,962
Proceeds from issuance (repayment) of note payable—related

party — (3,200) —
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock — — 1,800
Proceeds from issuance of common stock — — 5,145
Exercise of options 974 509 1,483
Exercise of warrants 590 12,275 12,865
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,564 85,694 97,403
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 163 2 161
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (23,374) 51,748 33,586
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 56,960 5,212 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 33,586 $ 56,960 $ 33,586
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information
Interest paid $ — $ 9 $ 17
Income taxes paid 34 7 41
Non-cash investing and financing transactions
Non cash acquisition of patents through issuance of

common stock shares (refer to Note 5) — 750 750
Conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred stock, classified as

mezzanine equity, into common stock, prior to the Merger — 76 76
Conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred stock, classified as

mezzanine equity, into common stock, upon Merger — 1,724 1,724
Conversion of Series A Convertible Preferred stock, classified as

equity, into common stock, post-Merger — 201 201
Conversion of derivative warrants into common stock 808 10,657 11,465
Conversion of derivative warrants to equity warrants $ 3918 $ — 3,918
(1) Cash acquired as part of acquisition of Vringo
Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents) $ — 740 $ 740
Long-term deposit — 8) (€))
Fixed assets, net — (124) (124)
Goodwill — (65,965) (65,965)
Technology — (10,133) (10,133)
Fair value of Legal Parent’s shares of common stock and vested

$0.01 options — 58,211 58,211
Fair value of warrants and vested stock options — 17,443 17,443
Long-term liabilities — 3,162 3,162

$ — 3 3,326 $ 3,326

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Vringo, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(a Development Stage Company)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

Note 1 — General

Vringo, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Company”), is engaged in the development and monetization of intellectual property
worldwide. The Company's intellectual property portfolio consists of over 500 patents and patent applications covering telecom infrastructure, internet search
and mobile technologies. The Company’s patents and patent applications have been developed internally and acquired from third parties. Prior to December
31, 2013, the Company operated a global platform for the distribution of mobile social applications and services it developed. On December 31, 2013, the
Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell its mobile social application business (refer to Notes 7 and 14).

On July 19, 2012, Vringo, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Vringo” or “Legal Parent”), closed a merger transaction (the “Merger”) with
Innovate/Protect, Inc., a privately held Delaware corporation (“I/P”), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 13, 2012 (the “Merger
Agreement”), by and among Vringo, I/P and VIP Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Vringo (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement,
I/P became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vringo through a merger of I/P with and into Merger Sub, and the former stockholders of I/P received shares of
Vringo that constituted a majority of the outstanding shares of Vringo.

Immediately following the Merger, approximately 67.61% of the combined company was owned by I/P stockholders on a fully diluted basis, and as
a result of this and other factors, I/P was deemed to be the acquiring company for accounting purposes and the transaction was accounted for as a reverse
acquisition in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). Accordingly, the Company’s financial
statements for periods prior to the Merger reflect the historical results of I/P, and the Company’s financial statements for all periods from July 19, 2012 reflect
the results of the combined company. Unless specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout these consolidated financial statements, the term “Company”
refers to the combined company after the Merger, and the business of I/P before the Merger. The terms I/P, Vringo, or Legal Parent refer to such entities’
standalone businesses prior to the Merger.

Note 2 — Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies
(a) Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Legal Parent, I/P and their wholly-owned subsidiaries, and are
presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. These consolidated
financial statements include the results of operations of I/P and subsidiaries for all periods presented, with the results of operations of the Legal Parent and its
subsidiaries for the period from July 19, 2012 (the effective date of the Merger) through December 31, 2013. Moreover, equity amounts, as well as net loss
per common share, presented for comparative periods differ from those previously presented by I/P, due to application of accounting requirements applicable
to a reverse acquisition.

(b) Development stage enterprise

The Company’s principal activities to date have been focused on development and enforcement of its intellectual property, and on the research and
development of its products. To date, the Company has not generated any significant revenues from its planned principal operations. Accordingly, the
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented as those of a development stage enterprise.

(c) Translation into U.S. dollars

The currency of the primary economic environment in which the operations of the Company are conducted is the U.S. dollar ("U.S. $" or “$”).
Therefore, the U.S. dollar has been determined to be the Company's functional currency. Post-Merger, the Company conducted significant transactions in
foreign currencies (primarily the New Israeli Shekels "NIS" and the Euro). These are recorded at the exchange rate as of the transaction date. All exchange
gains and losses from remeasurement of monetary balance sheet items denominated in non-U.S. dollar currencies are reflected as non-operating income
(expenses) in the consolidated statements of operations, as they arise.

Exchange rate of 1 U.S. $: NIS Euro

At December 31, 2013 3.471 0.726
At December 31, 2012 3.733 0.759
Average exchange rate for the year ended December 31, 2013 3.611 0.753

(d) Use of estimates

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from such estimates. Significant items subject to
such estimates and assumptions include the valuation of assets assumed and liabilities incurred as part of the Merger, the useful lives of the Company’s
tangible and intangible assets, the valuation of its October 2012 Warrants (as defined in Note 9), assets held for sale, derivative warrants, the valuation of
stock-based compensation, deferred tax assets and liabilities, income tax uncertainties and other contingencies.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company invests its cash in commercial paper, money market deposits and money market funds with financial institutions. The Company has

established guidelines relating to diversification and maturities of its investments in order to minimize credit risk and maintain high liquidity of funds. All
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at acquisition date are considered cash equivalents.






(f) Derivative instruments

The Company recognizes all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair values. The
Company's derivative instruments include Special Bridge Warrants, Conversion Warrants, Preferential Reload Warrants and Series 1 Warrants, all of which
have been recorded as a liability, at fair value, and are revalued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value of the instruments included in the
consolidated statements of operations as non-operating income (expense).

(g9) Long-lived assets

The Company’s long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. In assessing the recoverability of the Company's long-lived assets, the Company must make estimates and assumptions
regarding future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets. These estimates and assumptions could have a significant
impact on whether an impairment charge is recognized and also the magnitude of any such charge. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time,
based on relevant information. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgments and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. If these estimates or material related assumptions change in the
future, the Company may be required to record impairment charges related to its long-lived assets. During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company recorded
an impairment loss of $7,045 related to its acquired technology in connection with the sale of its mobile social application business. Refer to Note 7 for
further discussion.

(h) Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The useful lives of the Company’s property and equipment are based on estimates of the period over which the Company expects the assets

to be of economic benefit to the Company. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.

Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

%
Office furniture and equipment 7-33
Computers and related equipment 33
Leasehold improvements 10-33

(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include purchased patents which are recorded based on the cost to acquire them (refer to Note 5). These assets are amortized over
their remaining estimated useful lives which are periodically evaluated for reasonableness. The assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may no longer be recoverable. The Company also has acquired technology which is included in
assets held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 at fair value. The acquired technology was included in intangible assets, net in
the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012. Refer to Notes 6 and 7 for further discussion.

@) Goodwill

Goodwill is an asset representing the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually, and when triggering events occur, in accordance with the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other.
The Company has one reporting unit for purposes of evaluating goodwill impairment.

The Company has the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine if an impairment is more likely than not to have occurred. If the
Company can support the conclusion that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the Company
would not need to perform the two-step impairment test for the reporting unit. If the Company cannot support such a conclusion or the Company does not
elect to perform the qualitative assessment then the first step of the goodwill impairment test is used to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair
value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, then step two of the
impairment test (measurement) does not need to be performed. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication of goodwill
impairment exists for the reporting unit and the entity must perform step two of the impairment test. Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined
by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to an acquisition price allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using certain valuation techniques in addition to the company’s
market capitalization.

The Company performed its annual impairment test of goodwill as of December 31, 2013. Based on this test, the Company did not recognize an
impairment charge related to goodwill since the fair value of the reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value. The fair value as of December 31,
2013 was approximated to be $250,127, exceeding the carrying value by 118%. The Company did however recognize an impairment charge related to
goodwill of approximately $208 during the fourth quarter of 2013 in connection with the sale of its mobile social application business. Refer to Note 7 for
further discussion.

(k) Revenue recognition
Revenue from patent licensing and enforcement is recognized if collection is reasonably assured, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the

sales price is fixed or determinable and delivery of the service has been rendered. The Company uses management's best estimate of selling price for
individual elements in multiple-element arrangements, where vendor specific evidence or third party evidence of selling price is not available.




(1) Operating legal costs

Operating legal costs mainly include the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Company’s patent licensing and enforcement activities,
patent-related legal expenses paid to external patent counsel (including contingent legal fees), licensing and enforcement related research, consulting and
other expenses paid to third parties, as well as internal payroll expenses, share based compensation, and the amortization of acquired patents.

(m) Research and development

Research and development expenses were expensed as incurred and consists primarily of payroll and facilities charges associated with the research,
development and integration of the Company’s mobile social application products.

(n) Accounting for stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations and such cost is measured at the grant-date fair
value of the equity-settled award. The fair value of stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. In
cases where no measurement date has been reached as there is no counter-party performance nor performance commitment (sufficiently large disincentive for
non-performance), the options are revalued at each reporting date. The expense is recognized on a straight-line basis, over the requisite service period. The
Company uses full contractual life to estimate the expected term of options granted to management and directors (and non-employees), as the Company
expects such options to be exercised at the end of their life, and the simplified method to estimate the expected term of options granted to employees, due to
insufficient history and high turnover in the past. The contractual life of options granted under the Legal Parent’s 2006 and 2012 option plans are 6 and 10
years, respectively. Since the Company lacks sufficient history, expected volatility is estimated based on the average historical volatility of similar entities
with publicly traded shares. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the date of grant.

(o) Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss
and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is provided for the amount of deferred tax assets that, based on available
evidence, are not more likely than not to be realized. Tax benefits related to excess deductions on stock-based compensation arrangements are recognized
when they reduce taxes payable.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the Company looks at cumulative losses in recent years, estimates of future taxable earnings,
feasibility of tax planning strategies, the realizability of tax benefit carryforwards, and other relevant information. Valuation allowances related to deferred tax
assets can be impacted by changes to tax laws, changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable earnings. Ultimately, the actual tax benefits to be realized will
be based upon future taxable earnings levels, which are very difficult to predict. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates in future periods,
the Company will be required to adjust the valuation allowance.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company's federal, state and foreign tax positions and in the determination of its tax provision.
Despite management's belief that the Company's liability for unrecognized tax benefits is adequate, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the
timing of the resolution of any particular tax matters. The Company may adjust these accruals as relevant circumstances evolve, such as guidance from the
relevant tax authority, its tax advisors, or resolution of issues in the courts. The Company's tax expense includes the impact of accrual provisions and changes
to accruals that it considers appropriate. These adjustments are recognized as a component of income tax expense entirely in the period in which new
information is available. The Company records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in the consolidated statements of
operations as general and administrative expenses.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income

tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the
period in which the change in judgment occurs.
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(p) Net loss per share data

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
plus dilutive potential common stock considered outstanding during the period. However, as the Company generated net losses in all periods presented, some
potentially dilutive securities, that relate to the continuing operations, including certain warrants and stock options, were not reflected in diluted net loss per
share, because the impact of such instruments was anti-dilutive. The table below presents the computation of basic and diluted net losses per common
share:

Cumulative from
June 8, 2011
Year ended December 31, (Inception) through

2013 2012 December 31, 2013

Basic Numerator:
Loss from continuing operations attributable to shares of

common stock $ (41,748) $ (18,409) $ (62,911)
Loss from discontinued operations attributable to shares of

common stock $ (10,685) $ (2,432) $ (13,117)
Net loss attributable to shares of common stock $ (52,433) $ (20,841) $ (76,028)
Basic Denominator:
Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding

during the period 83,097,667 38,949,305 50,004,601
Weighted average number of penny stock options 104,024 161,871 100,872
Basic common stock share outstanding 83,201,691 39,111,176 50,105,473
Basic loss per common stock share from continuing

operations $ (0.50) $ 0.47) $ (1.26)
Basic loss per common stock share from discontinued

operations $ 0.13) $ (0.06) $ (0.26)
Basic net loss per common stock share $ (0.63) $ (0.53) $ (1.52)
Diluted Numerator:
Net loss attributable to shares of common stock $ (4,748) $  (18,409) $ (62,911)
Increase in net loss attributable to derivative warrants $ 59 $ (4,701) $ (3,336)
Diluted net loss from continuing operations attributable to

shares of common stock $ (41,807) $  (23,110) $ (66,247)
Diluted net loss from discontinued operations attributable to

shares of common stock $ (10,685) $ (2,432) $ (13,117)
Diluted net loss attributable to shares of common stock $ (52,492) $  (25,542) $ (79,364)
Diluted Denominator:
Basic common stock share outstanding 83,201,691 39,111,176 50,105,473
Weighted average number of derivative warrants outstanding

during the period 79,182 2,553,500 1,513,424
Diluted common stock share outstanding 83,280,873 41,664,676 51,618,897
Diluted loss per common stock share from continuing
operations $ (0.50) $ (0.55) $ (1.28)
Diluted loss per common stock share from discontinued
operations $ (0.13) $ (0.06) $ (0.26)
Diluted net loss per common stock share $ 0.63) $ 0.61) $ (1.54)
Net loss per share data presented excludes from the calculation of diluted net loss the following potentially

dilutive securities, as of December 31 of the applicable period, as they had an anti-dilutive impact:
Both vested and unvested options at $0.96-$5.50 exercise price, to

purchase an equal number of shares of common stock of

the Company 10,407,157 8,942,929 10,407,157
Unvested penny options to purchase an equal number of

shares of common stock of the Company — 14,125 —
Unvested RSUs to issue an equal number of shares of common stock

of the Company 2,161,402 3,125,000 2,161,402
Common stock shares granted, but not yet vested 30,046 92,903 30,046
Warrants to purchase an equal number of shares of common stock

of the Company 18,261,031 3,787,628 15,202,513
Total number of potentially dilutive instruments, excluded

from the calculation of net loss per share: 30,859,636 15,962,585 27,801,118

(@) Commitments and Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from assessments, estimates or other sources are to be recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs expected to be incurred in connection with a loss contingency are expensed as incurred.

(r) Fair value measurements

The Company measures fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. ASC 820-10 clarifies that fair
value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing



an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, ASC 820-10 establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in
the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value:
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Level 1- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible to the reporting entity at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Other than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at measurement date.

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value.

(s) Impact of recently issued accounting standards

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11
requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of those
arrangements on its financial position, and to allow investors to better compare financial statements prepared under U.S. GAAP with financial statements
prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The new standards are effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2013, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Retrospective application is required. The Company adopted the guidance as of January 1, 2013, as required.
There was no material impact on the consolidated financial statements resulting from the adoption.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar
Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which provides guidance on the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. This guidance requires an entity to
present an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward, except as follows: to the extent a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward
is not available at the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction to settle any additional income taxes that would result from the
disallowance of a tax position or the tax law of the applicable jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred
tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be combined with deferred
tax assets. This guidance is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2014 and should be applied prospectively with retroactive application permitted.
The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU No. 2013-11 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(t) Reclassification
Certain balances have been reclassified to conform to the presentation requirements for discontinued operations and the post-Merger year.

Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31,
2013 2012
Cash denominated in U.S. dollars $ 24,628 $ 34,386
Money market funds denominated in U.S. dollars 3,184 22,352
Cash in currency other than U.S. dollars 5,774 222
$ 33,586 $ 56,960

Note 4 — Property and Equipment

As of December 31,

2013 2012
Computers, software and equipment $ 171 $ 169
Furniture and fixtures 83 67
Leasehold improvements 110 105
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (134) 47)
$ 230 $ 294

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $87 and $46 of depreciation and amortization expense, respectively,
and $134 cumulatively from Inception.
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Note 5 — Intangible Assets

Weighted average
As of December 31, amortization period
2013 2012 (years)

Acquired technology (refer to Note 6) $ 10,133 $ 10,133 6.0
Less: accumulated amortization (2,451) (763)
Less: impairment of technology (refer to Note 7) (7,045) —
Less: technology reclassified to assets held for sale (refer to Note 7) (637) —
Total — 9,370
Patents 28,213 26,694 8.3
Less: accumulated amortization (5,465) (2,020)
Total 22,748 24,674

$ 22,748 $ 34,044

In August 2012, the Company purchased from Nokia Corporation a portfolio consisting of various patents and patent applications. The portfolio
encompasses a broad range of technologies relating to telecom infrastructure, including communication management, data and signal transmission, mobility
management, radio resources management and services. The total consideration paid for the portfolio was $22,000. In addition, the Company capitalized
certain costs related to the acquisition of patents in the total amount of $548. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, to the extent that the gross revenue
generated by such portfolio exceeds $22,000, the Company is obligated to pay a royalty of 35% of such excess. The Company has not recorded any amounts
in respect of this contingent consideration, as both the amounts of future potential revenue, if any, and the timing of such revenue cannot be reliably
estimated.

In October 2012, the Company’s subsidiary entered into an additional patent purchase agreement. As partial consideration, the Company issued
160,600 shares of common stock to the seller with a fair value of $750. In addition, under the terms of the purchase agreement, 20% of the gross revenue
collected will be payable to the seller as a royalty. The Company has not recorded any amounts in respect of this contingent consideration, as both the
amounts of future potential revenue, if any, and the timing of such revenue cannot be reliably estimated.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded total patent amortization expense of $3,445 and $1,692, respectively,
and $5,465 cumulatively from Inception. In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, total amortization expense of $1,688 and $763
was recorded, respectively, and $2,451 cumulatively from Inception, for the Company’s acquired technology (for December 31, 2013 classification refer
to Note 7). Estimated patent amortization expense for each of the five succeeding years, based upon intangible assets owned at December 31, 2013 is as
follows:

Year ending December 31, Amount
2014 $ 3,832
2015 3,766
2016 3,045
2017 2,845
2018 2,822
2019 and thereafter 6,438
$ 22,748
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Note 6 — Business Combination

On July 19, 2012, I/P consummated the Merger with the Legal Parent, as also described in Note 1. The consideration consisted of various equity
instruments, including: shares of common stock, options, preferred stock and warrants. The purpose of the Merger was to increase the combined company's
intellectual property portfolio and array of products, to gain access to capital markets, and for other reasons. Upon completion of the Merger, (i) all then
outstanding 6,169,661 common stock shares of I/P, par value $0.0001 per share, were exchanged for 18,617,569, shares of the Company’s common stock, par
value $0.01 per share, and (ii) all outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of I/P, par value $0.0001 per share, were exchanged for 6,673
shares of the Legal Parent’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, which shares were convertible into 20,136,445 shares of
common stock of the Legal Parent. In addition, the Legal Parent issued to the holders of I/P capital stock an aggregate of 15,959,838 warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 15,959,838 shares of the Company’s common stock with an exercise price of $1.76 per share. The Company recorded such warrants as a
derivative long-term liability in the total amount of $21,954 (refer to Note 9). In addition, all outstanding and unexercised options to purchase I/P common
stock, whether vested or unvested, were converted into 41,178 options to purchase the Company’s common stock. Immediately following the completion of
the Merger, the former stockholders of I/P owned approximately 55.04% of the outstanding common stock of the combined company (or 67.61% of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock, calculated on a fully diluted basis), and the Legal Parent’s stockholders prior to the Merger owned
approximately 44.96% of the outstanding common stock of the combined company (or 32.39% of the outstanding shares of its common stock calculated on a
fully diluted basis). For accounting purposes, I/P was identified as the accounting “acquirer,” as it is defined in FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations. The
total purchase price of $75,654 was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of the Legal Parent. Registration and issuance cost, in the total
amount of $463, was recorded against the additional paid-in capital.

Allocation of purchase

price

Current assets, net of current liabilities $ 2,586
Long-term deposit 8
Property and equipment 124
Acquired technology 10,133
Goodwill 65,965
Total assets acquired, net 78,816
Fair value of outstanding warrants granted by Legal Parent prior to the Merger, classified as a long-term derivative
liability (3,162)
Total liabilities assumed, net (3,162)

75,654
Measurement of consideration:
Fair value of vested stock options granted to employees, management and consultants, classified as equity 7,364
Fair value of outstanding warrants granted by the Legal Parent prior to the Merger, classified as equity 10,079
Fair value of Vringo shares of common stock and vested $0.01 options granted to employees, management and
consultants 58,211
Total estimated purchase price $ 75,654

The fair values of the identified intangible assets were estimated by the Company using an income approach valuation model. Under the income
approach, an intangible asset’s fair value is equal to the present value of future economic benefits to be derived from ownership of the asset. Indications of
value are developed by discounting future net cash flows to their present value at market-based rates of return. The goodwill recognized as a result of the
acquisition is primarily attributable to the value of the workforce and other intangible asset arising as a result of operational synergies, products, and similar
factors which could not be separately identified. The useful life of the intangible assets for amortization purposes was determined considering the period of
expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the intangible assets adjusted as appropriate for the entity-specific factors including legal, regulatory,
contractual, competitive economic or other factors that may limit the useful life of intangible assets. Goodwill recognized is not deductible for income tax
purposes.

Note 7 — Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

On December 31, 2013, the Company entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement with InfoMedia Services Limited (“Infomedia”), a private
company, incorporated in the United Kingdom, for the sale of all assets (the “Asset Group”) and the assignment of all agreements related to the Company’s
mobile social application business. The Asset Group, which the Company determined to represent a business in accordance with ASC 805, “Business
Combinations,” is mostly comprised of the Company’s acquired technology (refer to Notes 5 and 6). The closing of the transaction, which was subject to the
satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions, occurred on February 18, 2014 (“Closing”) (refer to Note 14).

Upon Closing, in exchange for the assets and agreements related to the Company’s mobile social application business, the Company received 18
Class B shares of Infomedia, which represent an 8.25% ownership interest in Infomedia. The Infomedia Class B shares were accounted for as a cost-method
investment in the first quarter of 2014. The Company will test its investment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may no longer be recoverable.

In connection with the asset purchase agreement, an impairment loss of $7,253 was recorded during the fourth quarter of 2013, which represents the
excess of the carrying value (which includes the portion of goodwill allocated to the mobile social application business) over the estimated fair value of the
Asset Group. The fair value of the Asset Group was estimated using an income approach by developing a discounted, future, net cash flows model. The
following table presents the carrying amounts of the major classes of assets from discontinued mobile social application in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 (as of December 31, 2013, there were no liabilities classified as held for sale, as no liabilities were transferred to
Infomedia upon Closing):




As of December 31,

2013
Cash $ 48
Accounts receivable 102
Goodwill at carrying amount of $208, net of $208 loss on impairment —
Acquired technology at carrying amount of $10,133, net of $2,451 accumulated amortization and $7,045
loss on impairment 637
Total assets held for sale $ 787

The following table represents the components of operating results from discontinued operations, as presented in the consolidated statements of
operations:

Cumulative from

Inception through
As of December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2013
Revenue $ 224 $ 269 $ 493
Operating expenses (3,334) (2,666) (6,000)
Loss on impairment (7,253) — (7,253)
Operating loss (10,363) (2,397) (12,760)
Non-operating income (expense) (65) 20 (45)
Loss before taxes on income (10,428) (2,377) (12,805)
Income tax expense (257) (55) (312)
Loss from discontinued operations $ (10,685) $ (2,432) $ (13,117)

Note 8 — Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures its derivative liabilities at fair value. The Special Bridge Warrants, Conversion Warrants, Preferential Reload Warrants and
the derivative Series 1 Warrants (as they are defined in Note 9) are classified within Level 3 because they are valued using the Black-Scholes-Merton and the
Monte-Carlo models (as these warrants include down-round protection clauses), which utilize significant inputs that are unobservable in the market.

The following table presents the placement in the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Fair value measurement at reporting date using
Quoted prices in

active markets Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
Derivative liabilities on account of warrants Balance assets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
As of December 31, 2013 $ 4,083 — — $ 4,083
As of December 31, 2012 $ 7,612 —_ — $ 7,612

The following table presents the placement in the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis
as of December 31, 2013 (there were no such assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2012):

Fair value measurement at reporting date using
Quoted prices in

active markets Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
Balance assets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2)  inputs (Level 3)
Assets held for sale $ 787 $ 150 — 8 637

In addition to the above, the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, consisted of cash, cash equivalents,
accounts payable, and accounts receivable and long term deposits. The carrying amounts of all the aforementioned financial instruments approximate fair
value. The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Level 3
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ —
Derivative warrants issued to I/P’s shareholders in connection with the Merger, July 19, 2012 21,954
Fair value of derivative warrants issued by Legal Parent (refer to Note 9) 3,162
Fair value adjustment, prior to exercise of warrants, included in statement of operations 156
Exercise of derivative warrants (10,657)
Fair value adjustment at end of period, included in statement of operations (7,003)
Balance at December 31, 2012 7,612
Net impact of removal of down-round clause in Series 1 Warrant (refer to Note 9) (2,300)
Fair value adjustment, prior to exercise of warrants, included in statement of operations 9
Exercise of derivative warrants (808)
Fair value adjustment at end of period, included in statement of operations (430)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 4,083






Valuation processes for Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurement of the derivative liability on account of Special Bridge Warrants, Conversion Warrants, Preferential Reload Warrants and
Series 1 Warrants (as defined in Note 9) fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value measurements are evaluated by management to ensure
that changes are consistent with expectations of management based upon the sensitivity and nature of the inputs.

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range

Special Bridge Warrants, Conversion Black-Scholes-Merton and the Volatility 46.85% — 52.63%

Warrants, Preferential Reload Monte-Carlo models Risk free interest rate 0.16% — 1.11%

Warrants and the outstanding Expected term, in years 0.99 — 3.55

derivative Series 1 Warrants Dividend yield 0%
Probability and timing of down-round 5% occurrence in
triggering event December 2014

The fair value of assets held for sale, as well as other long-lived assets, is determined by estimating the present value of the expected future cash
flows associated with that asset or asset group by using certain unobservable market inputs. These inputs include discount rates, estimated future cash flows
and certain continuing growth rate assumptions. The discount rates are intended to reflect the risk inherent in the projected future cash flows generated by the
respective asset or asset group. These inputs, particularly related to mobile social application technology, are sensitive to rapid changes in the industry and
technological advances.

Sensitivity of Level 3 measurements to changes in significant unobservable inputs

The inputs to estimate the fair value of the Company’s derivative warrant liability are the current market price of the Company’s common stock, the
exercise price of the warrant, its remaining expected term, the volatility of the Company’s common stock market price, the Company’s estimations regarding
the probability and timing of a down-round protection triggering event and the risk-free interest rate. Significant changes in any of those inputs in isolation
can result in a significant change in the fair value measurement. Generally, a positive change in the market price of the Company’s common stock, an increase
in the volatility of the Company’s shares of common stock, an increase in the remaining term of the warrant, or an increase of a probability of a down-round
triggering event would each result in a directionally similar change in the estimated fair value of the Company’s warrants, and thus an increase in the
associated liability and vice-versa. An increase in the risk-free interest rate or a decrease in the positive differential between the warrant’s exercise price and
the market price of the Company’s shares of common stock would result in a decrease in the estimated fair value measurement of the warrants and thus a
decrease in the associated liability. The Company has not, nor plans to, declare dividends on its common stock, and thus, there is no change in the estimated
fair value of the warrants due to the dividend assumption.

Note 9 — Stockholders' Equity

Pre-Merger common stock share amounts and balance sheet disclosures were retrospectively restated to reflect Vringo’s equity instruments after the
Merger.

(a) Common Stock

The following table summarizes information about the Company's issued and outstanding common stock from Inception through December 31,
2013:

Shares of common stock
Balance as of June 8, 2011 (Inception) —

Grant of shares at less than fair value to officers, directors and consultants 8,768,014
Issuance of shares of common stock 8,204,963
Balance as of December 31, 2011 16,972,977
Conversion of Series A Preferred Convertible Preferred stock, classified as mezzanine equity 890,192
Grant of shares to consultants 265,000
Legal Parent’s shares of common stock, recorded upon Merger 15,206,118
Exercise of 250,000 warrants, issued and exercised prior to the Merger 754,400
Post-Merger exercise of warrants 6,832,150
Exercise of stock options and vesting of RSUs 726,346
Conversion of Series A Preferred Convertible Preferred stock, classified as equity 20,136,445
Issuance of shares of common stock in connection with $31,148 received in a private financing round, net of issuance cost of $52 9,600,000
Issuance of shares of common stock in connection with $44,962 received in a private financing round, net of issuance cost of $39 10,344,998
Shares issued for acquisition of patents, refer to Note 5 160,600
Balance as of December 31, 2012 81,889,226
Exercise of warrants 435,783
Exercise of stock options and vesting of RSUs 2,177,644
Balance as of December 31, 2013 84,502,653

(b) Equity Incentive Plan

In August 2011, I/P adopted its 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan (the “I/P 2011 Plan”). The I/P 2011 Plan provided for the issuance of
stock options and restricted stock to the Company’s directors, employees and consultants. Cancelled, expired or forfeited grants may be reissued under the I/P
2011 Plan. The number of shares available under I/P 2011 Plan was subject to adjustments for certain changes. Following the Merger with the Legal Parent,
the I/P 2011 Plan was assumed by the Company.

On July 19, 2012, following the Merger with the Legal Parent, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2012 Employee, Director and Consultant
Equity Incentive Plan (“2012 Plan”), replacing the existing 2006 Stock Option Plan of the Legal Parent, and the remaining 9,100,000 authorized shares
thereunder were cancelled. The Company’s 2012 Plan was approved in order to ensure full compliance with legal and tax requirements under U.S. law. The
number of shares subject to the 2012 Plan is the sum of: (i) 15,600,000 shares of common stock, which constitutes 6,500,000 new shares and 9,100,000
previously authorized but unissued shares under the 2006 Stock Option Plan and (ii) any shares of common stock that are represented by awards granted



under the Legal Parent’s 2006 Stock Option Plan that are forfeited, expired or are cancelled without delivery of shares of common stock or which result in the
forfeiture of shares of common stock back to the Company, or the equivalent of such number of shares after the administrator, in its sole discretion, has
interpreted the effect of any stock split, stock dividend, combination, recapitalization or similar transaction in accordance with the 2012 Plan; provided,
however, that no more than 3,200,000 shares shall be added to the 2012 Plan. As of December 31, 2013, 4,509,796 shares were available for future grants
under the 2012 Plan.




(c) Stock options and RSUs

The following table illustrates the common stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2013:

No. of Exercise FMV at Assumptions used in Black-Scholes option
Title Grant date options price grant date Vesting terms pricing model
Volatility
. Risk free interest rate 59.26%-70.51%
Management, Directors and  January-December 3,365,833 $2.77-$3.04 $2.77.5324  OVer067-3  pypected term, 0.85%-2.06%
ployees 2013 years .
in years 5.71-10.00
Dividend yield 0.00%
Volatility
Over0-2.5  Risk free interest rate 61.80%-63.87%
Consultant January-June 2013 132,500 $2.90-$3.30 $2.90-$3.30 ears Remaining expected term, in 2.16%-2.95%
¥ years 9-9.50
Dividend yield 0.00%

*  Certain options granted to officers, directors and certain key employees are subject to acceleration of vesting of 75% - 100% (according to the agreement
signed with each grantee), upon a subsequent change of control.

The following table illustrates the RSUs granted during the year ended December 31, 2013:

Title Grant date No. of RSUs Exercise price Share price at grant date Vesting terms
Management, directors and February-May 656.250 o
employees 2013 ’ $2.95-$3.18 Over 0.67-3 years

January-October 66,000 o

Consultants $2.96-$3.26  Over 0.75-1.20 years

The following tables summarize information about stock options and RSU activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

RSUs Options
Weighted average Weighted average
No. of grant date fair No. of Weighted average Exercise price grant date fair
RSUs value options exercise price range value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 3,125,000 $ 3.72 9,149,105 $ 3.33 $0.01 - $5.50 $ 2.57
Granted 722,250 $ 3.15 3,498,333 § 3.12 $2.77-$3.30 $ 2.16
Vested/Exercised (1,452,721) $ 3.60 (724,923) $ 1.34 $0.01-$3.18 $ 2.97
Expired — — (982,534) $ 5.02 $0.01-$5.50 $ 1.59
Forfeited (233,126) $ 3.71 (482,822) 3.51 0.01 —$5.50 $ 2.44
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 2,161,403 $ 3.61 10,457,159 § 3.23 $0.01 —$5.50 $ 2.50
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 — — 5,863,479 § 3.09 $0.01 — $5.50
Non vested options: Non vested RSUs:
Weighted average Weighted average
grant date fair grant date fair
No. of options value No. of RSUs value

Balance at January 1, 2013 4,902,989 $ 2.50 3,125,000 $ 3.72

Granted 3,498,333 $ 2.16 722,250 $ 3.15

Vested (3,324,820) $ 2.35 (1,452,721) $ 3.60

Forfeited (482,822) $ 244 (233,126) $ 3.71

Balance at December 31, 2013 4,593,680 $ 2.36 2,161,403 $ 3.61

The following table summarizes information about employee and non-employee stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2013:

Weighted average remaining

Exercise price No. options outstanding No. options exercisable contractual life (years)
$ 0.01-1.00 381,679 381,679 3.72
$ 1.01-2.00 1,262,232 1,220,566 4.19
$ 2.01-3.00 655,000 161,250 8.53
$ 3.01-4.00 7,749,582 3,691,317 8.67
$ 4.01-5.00 11,166 11,167 0.22
$ 5.04-6.00 397,500 397,500 2.56
10,457,159 5,863,479

As of December 31, 2013, the total aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options exercisable was $2,558 and $2,445, respectively.
The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised was $1,322. As of December 31, 2012, the total aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and
options exercisable was $3,548 and $3,200, respectively. The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised was $2,417. The total fair value of stock
options that vested in the year ended December 31, 2013, and 2012, and cumulative from Inception until December 31, 2013 amounts to $7,807, $5,927 and
$13,759 respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, there was approximately $17,481 of total unrecognized share-based payment cost related to non-vested options, shares
and RSUs, granted under the incentive stock option plans. Overall, the cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average of 1.5 years.

The Company did not recognize tax benefits related to its stock-based compensation due to full valuation allowance in the U.S.
(d) Warrants

The following table summarizes information about warrant activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted average Exercise
No. of warrants exercise price price range
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 18,863,261 $ 3.11 $0.94 — $5.06
Exercised during the year (435,783) $ 1.36 $0.94 — $1.76

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 18,427,478 $ 3.15 $0.94 — $5.06







The Company’s outstanding warrants consisted of the following:
(1) Series 1 and Series 2 Warrants

As part of the Merger, on July 19, 2012, the Legal Parent issued to I/P’s stockholders 8,299,115 warrants at an exercise price of $1.76 per share and
contractual term of 5 years (“Series 1 Warrant”). These warrants bear down-round protection clauses and as a result, they were initially classified as
a long-term derivative liability and recorded at fair value. In addition, I/P’s stockholders received another 7,660,722 warrants at an exercise price of
$1.76 per share and contractual term of 5 years (“Series 2 Warrant”). As the Series 2 Warrants do not have down-round protection clauses, they were
classified as equity.

As part of the issuance of October 2012 Warrants, the down-round protection clause in 2,173,852 then outstanding Series 1 Warrants was removed.
Because such warrants were no longer subject to down-round protection they were re-measured at fair value and classified as equity instruments.
The overall impact of the removal of the down-round warrant protection, which was not material, was recorded during the year ended December 31,
2013. As a result, during the year ended December 31, 2013 the Company recorded an additional non-operating expense of $1,617, and re-classified
$3,918 from derivative liabilities on account of warrants to stockholders’ equity.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, 166,447 Series 1 Warrants and 45,190 Series 2 Warrants were exercised. From Inception and through
December 31, 2013, 4,821,547 Series 1 Warrants and 1,326,060 Series 2 Warrants were exercised.

(2) Conversion Warrants, Special Bridge Warrants and Reload Warrants

On July 19, 2012, the date of the Merger, the Legal Parent’s outstanding warrants included: (i) 148,390 derivative warrants, at an exercise price of
$0.94 per share, with a remaining contractual term of 2.44 years (the “Special Bridge Warrants”); (ii) 101,445 derivative warrants, at an exercise
price of $0.94 per share, with a remaining contractual term of 2.44 years (the “Conversion Warrants”); (iii) 887,330 derivative warrants, at an
exercise price of $1.76 per share, with a remaining contractual term of 4.55 years (the “Preferential Reload Warrants™); and (iv) 814,408 warrants,
classified as equity, at an exercise price of $1.76 per share, with a remaining contractual term of 4.55 years (the “non-Preferential Reload
Warrants”). During both the year ended December 31, 2013, and from Inception through December 31, 2013, 127,192 Special Bridge Warrants and
86,954 Conversion Warrants were exercised. During the year ended December 31, 2013, 10,000 non-Preferential Reload Warrants were exercised.
From Inception and through December 31, 2013, 179,520 non-Preferential Reload Warrants and 726,721 Preferential Reload Warrants were
exercised.

(3) Initial Public Offering Warrants

Upon completion of its initial public offering, in June 2010, the Legal Parent issued 4,784,000 warrants at an exercise price of $5.06 per share. These
warrants are publicly traded and are exercisable until June 21, 2015, at an exercise price of $5.06 per share. As of December 31, 2013, all of these
warrants were outstanding and classified as equity instruments.

(4) October 2012 Warrants

On October 12, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with certain of its warrant holders, pursuant to which, on October 23 and 24, 2012, the
holders exercised in cash 3,721,062 of their outstanding warrants, with an exercise price of $1.76 per share. In exchange, the Company granted such
warrant holders unregistered warrants of the Company to purchase an aggregate of 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value
$0.01 per share, at an exercise price of $5.06 per share (the “October 2012 Warrants”). The contractual life of these warrants is 2.66 years and
because such warrants do not bear any down-round protection clauses they were classified as equity instruments. October 2012 Warrants were
valued using the following assumptions: volatility: 68.1%, share price: $3.50-$3.77, risk free interest rate: 0.724% and dividend yield: 0%. The fair
value of warrants issued in exchange for the exercise of the Company’s derivative warrants was accounted for as an inducement, therefore an amount
of $2,883 was recorded as a non-operating expense. As of December 31, 2013, all October 2012 warrants were outstanding.

Note 10 — Revenue from Settlement and Licensing Agreement

On May 30, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary entered into a settlement and license agreement with Microsoft Corporation to resolve its patent
litigation pending in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York (I/P Engine, Inc. v. Microsoft Corporation, Case No. 1:13-cv-00688
(SDNY)). According to the agreement, Microsoft Corporation paid the Company $1,000 and agreed to pay 5% of any future amount Google pays for its use
of the patents acquired from Lycos. The parties also agreed to a limitation on Microsoft Corporation's total liability, which would not impact the
Company unless the amounts received from Google substantially exceed the judgment previously awarded. In addition, the parties also entered into
a patent assignment agreement, pursuant to which Microsoft Corporation assigned six patents to I/P Engine. The assigned patents relate to
telecommunications, data management, and other technology areas.

Note 11 — Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the cumulative period from Inception through December 31, 2013, loss from continuing
operations before taxes consists of the following:

Cumulative
For the year ended December 31, from Inception through
2013 2012 December 31, 2013
U.s. $ (41,204) $ (17,673) $ (61,631)
Non-U.S. (544) (736) (1,280)
$ (41,748) $ (18,409) $ (62,911)
Income tax expense attributable to the operating loss of continuing and discontinued operations consists of the following:
Cumulative
For the year ended December 31, from Inception through

2013 2012 December 31, 2013




Current
Deferred

Non-U.S (discontinued operations)
Current
Deferred

— 3 — 3 —
(245) (112) (357)
(12) 57 45
(257) $ (55) $ (312)
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Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to
loss from continuing operations before taxes on income as a result of the following:

Cumulative
from Inception
through
For the year ended December 31, 2012 December 31,
2013 2012 2013

Loss from continuing operations before taxes on income $ (41,748) $ (18,409) $ (62,911)
Tax rate 35 % 35 % 35 %
Computed "expected" tax benefit 14,612 6,443 22,019
Foreign tax rate differential (122) (147) (269)
Change in valuation allowance (17,085) (7,461) (25,777)
Nondeductible expenses (125) (15) (140)
State and local income tax, net of federal income tax expense 2,714 1,197 3,911
Other items 6 17) 256

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations $ — $ — $ —

These deferred tax assets (liabilities) arise from the following types of temporary differences:

For the year ended December 31,

2013 2012

Deferred tax assets:

Acquired patents (see also Note 5) $ — % 446

Liability for accrued employee vacation and severance pay 7 19

Stock-based compensation 8,104 4,590

Net operating loss carryforwards 36,605 23,127

Total gross deferred tax assets 44,716 28,182
Less:

Valuation allowance (44,445) (24,274)

Deferred tax liability for acquired technology (refer to Note 8): (264) (3,889)
Net deferred tax assets $ 7 % 19

The valuation allowance primarily relates to operating loss carryforwards ("NOL") that, in the judgment of management, are not more-likely-than-
not to be realized. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The following table presents the changes to valuation allowance during the periods presented:

Amount
As of Inception $ —
Charged to cost and expenses 1,231
As of December 31, 2011 1,231
Charged to cost and expenses 12,240
Acquisitions * 10,803
As of December 31, 2012 24,274
Charged to cost and expenses — continuing operations 17,085
Charged to cost and expenses — discontinued operations 3,086
As of December 31, 2013 $ 44,445

* As mentioned below, the NOL amounts are presented before Internal Revenue Code, Section 382 limitations.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company has an aggregate total NOL for U.S. federal, state and local purposes in the amount of approximately
$88,204 expiring 20 years from the respective tax years to which they relate (beginning with 2006 for Vringo, Inc., and 2011 for Innovate/Protect Inc.), i.e.
2026 to 2033. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposed substantial restrictions on the utilization of NOL and tax credits in the event of an ownership change of a
corporation. Thus, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code, Section 382, the Company's initial public offering, its certain pre-Merger financing activities,
as well as the Merger, may limit the Company's ability to utilize all such NOL and credit carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2013, with the sale of its mobile social application business, and its classification as assets held for sale, the Company does not
meet the criteria for the exception of indefinite reversal criteria for its Israeli subsidiary. The Company did not record any additional material provisions
related to such event.

A valuation allowance has been recorded against the net deferred tax asset in the U.S. as it is in the opinion of the Company’s management it is more
likely than not that the operating loss carryforwards will not be utilized in the foreseeable future. No valuation allowance has been provided for the deferred
tax assets of the Israeli subsidiary, since they are more likely than not to be realized.

The Company files its tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as in various state and local jurisdictions. Vringo, Inc, has open tax
assessments for the years 2010 through 2013. As of December 31, 2013, all tax assessments for Innovate/Protect are still open. The Israeli subsidiary files its
income tax returns in Israel. As of December 31, 2013, the Israeli subsidiary has open tax assessments for the years 2010 through 2013.
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The Company did not have any material unrecognized tax benefits in 2013 and 2012. The Company does not expect to record any additional
material provisions for unrecognized tax benefits within the next year.

The Israeli subsidiary has qualified as a "Beneficiary Enterprise" under the 2005 amendment to the Israeli Law for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments, 1959 (the "Investment Law"). As a Beneficiary Enterprise, the Israeli subsidiary is entitled to receive future tax benefits which are limited to a
period of seven years. The year in which a company elects to commence its tax benefits is designated as the year of election ("Year of Election"). The Israeli
subsidiary has elected 2007 as its Year of Election and has received a two year tax holiday for profits accumulated in the years 2007-2008. In 2011, the Israeli
subsidiary irrevocably adopted an amendment to the Investment law, according to which the following uniform tax rates (applicable to the zone where the
production facilities of the Israeli subsidiary are located) would apply: 15% in 2011 and 2012 and 12.5% in 2013. On August 5, 2013 the Knesset passed the
Law for Changes in National Priorities (Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Objectives in the Years 2013 and 2014) — 2013, according to which,
for 2014, the regular tax rate on corporate income will be raised by 1.5% to 26.5% and on tax rate of preferred income to 16%. As of the balance sheet date,
the Israeli subsidiary believes that it is in compliance with the conditions of the Beneficiary Enterprise program. Income that is not derived from the
Beneficiary Enterprise is subject to the regular corporate tax rate of 25% in 2013 and 26.5% in 2014.

Note 12 — Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Litigation and legal proceedings

The Company retains the services of professional service providers, including law firms that specialize in intellectual property licensing,
enforcement and patent law. These service providers are often retained on an hourly, monthly, project, contingent or a blended fee basis. In contingency fee
arrangements, a portion of the legal fee is based on predetermined milestones or the Company’s actual collection of funds. The Company accrues contingent
fees when it is probable that the milestones will be achieved and the fees can be reasonably estimated.

From October 2012 through October 7, 2013, the Company’s subsidiaries filed patent infringement lawsuits against the subsidiaries of ZTE
Corporation in the United Kingdom, France, Germany and Australia and against ASUSTeK Computer, Inc. and ASUS Computer GmbH in Germany.

In such jurisdictions, an unsuccessful plaintiff may be required to pay a portion of the other party’s legal fees. Pursuant to negotiation with ZTE’s
United Kingdom subsidiary, the Company placed two written commitments, in November 2012 and May 2013, to ensure payment should a liability by Vringo
Infrastructure arise as a result of the two cases it filed. Defendants estimated the total possible liability to be no more than $2,900 for each case. In addition,
ZTE's German subsidiary started three revocation (invalidity) proceedings against the Company; two in the first half of 2013 and one in the first quarter 2014.
Should ZTE's be successful in any of those actions the Company would liable for some portion of ZTE’s fees. The total amount the Company would have to
pay is a statutorily determined percentage based on the estimated the value in dispute for these proceedings. ZTE has estimated the value of the revocation
proceeding at €2,500 for each case; the Company assesses the likelihood of it as remote.

In addition, the Company may be required to grant additional written commitments, as necessary, in connection with its commenced proceedings
against ZTE Corporation and its subsidiaries in Europe and Australia. It should be noted, however, that if the Company were successful on any court
applications or the entirety of any litigation, ZTE Corporation would be responsible for a substantial portion of the Company’s legal fees.

(b) Leases

In July 2012, the Company signed a rental agreement for its corporate executive office in New York for an annual rental fee of approximately $137
(subject to certain adjustments) which was to expire in September 2015. However in January 2014, the Company entered into an amended lease agreement
with the landlord for newly renovated office within the same building. The annual rental fee for this new office is approximately $403 (subject to certain
adjustments) beginning when the renovations are completed and the new office is available. Until the new office is available, the monthly rent is based on the
previous annual rental fee. The lease for the New York office will expire 5 years and 3 months after the new office is available. The Company’s subsidiary in
Israel leases an office space which expires in May 2014. The annual rental fee is approximately $72. Rent expense for operating leases for the years ended
December 31, 2013, and 2012, and cumulative from Inception until December 31, 2013 amounts to $230, $120 and $361 respectively. Future minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases for office space, as of December 31, 2013, are as follows:

Year ending December 31, Amount

2014 $ 180

2015 104
$ 284

Note 13 — Risks and Uncertainties

(a) New legislation, regulations or rulings that impact the patent enforcement process or the rights of patent holders, could negatively affect the
Company’s current business model. For example, limitations on the ability to bring patent enforcement claims, limitations on potential liability for
patent infringement, lower evidentiary standards for invalidating patents, increases in the cost to resolve patent disputes and other similar
developments could negatively affect the Company’s ability to assert its patent or other intellectual property rights.

(b) The patents owned by the Company are presumed to be valid and enforceable. As part of the Company’s ongoing legal proceedings, the validity
and/or enforceability of the patents may be challenged in a court or administrative proceeding. To date, the Company’s patents have not been declared
to be invalid or unenforceable.

(c) Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash
equivalents. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with various major financial institutions. These major financial institutions are
located in the United States and its policy is designed to limit exposure to any one institution.

(d) A portion of the Company’s expenses are denominated in NIS, British Pound and Euro. If the value of the U.S. dollar weakens against the value of
these currencies, there will be a negative impact on the Company’s operating costs. In addition, the Company is subject to the risk of exchange rate

fluctuations to the extent it holds monetary assets and liabilities in these currencies.

Note 14 — Subsequent Events



(@

(b)

©

In January and February 2014, 626,805 warrants to purchase an aggregate of 626,805 shares of the Company’s common stock, at an exercise price of
$1.76 per share, were exercised by its warrant holders, pursuant to which it received an additional $1,103. In addition, 699,606 options and RSUs,
collectively, to purchase 699,606 shares of the Company’s common stock, issued to employees, directors and management, were exercised. As a
result, the Company received an additional $1,455.

On February 20, 2014, the Board approved a new grant of 1,025,000 options, at an exercise price of $4.10, to the Company’s directors and certain
members of management, granted under the 2012 Plan. The options granted to directors will vest quarterly over a one year period. The options
granted to certain members of management will vest quarterly over a three year period. The full impact of these events on the Company’s financial
statements has not yet been determined, however, the Company believes that such effect will be material.

On February 18, 2014, the Company executed the sale of its mobile social application business to Infomedia, in exchange for 18 Class B shares of

Infomedia, which represent an 8.25% ownership interest (refer to Note 7). The Infomedia Class B shares were accounted for as a cost-method
investment.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto, duly authorized on the 10th day of March, 2014.

VRINGO, INC.

By: /s/  Andrew D. Perlman
Andrew D. Perlman
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Signature Title Date

/s/ ANDREw D. PERLMAN Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal March 10, 2014
Andrew D. Perlman Executive Officer)

/s/ ANAsTASIA NYRKOVSKAYA Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer March 10, 2014
Anastasia Nyrkovskaya and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ ANDREw KENNEDY LANG Director March 10, 2014
Andrew Kennedy Lang

/s/  ALEXANDER R. BERGER Director March 10, 2014
Alexander R. Berger

/s/ JoHN ENGELMAN Director March 10, 2014

John Engelman

/s/  H. VAN SINCLAIR Director March 10, 2014
H. Van Sinclair

/s/ DonaLp E. Stour Director March 10, 2014
Donald E. Stout

/s/ AsHLEY C. KELLER Director March 10, 2014
Ashley C. Keller

/s/ NOEL J. SPIEGEL Director March 10, 2014
Noel J. Spiegel
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Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Vringo, Inc., VIP Merger Sub, Inc. and Innovate/Protect, Inc., dated as of March 12, 2012
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012)

3.1* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 29, 2010)

33 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 20, 2012)

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on May 18, 2010)

4.2 Specimen warrant certificate (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on May 18, 2010)

4.3 Form of Warrant Agreement (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on March 29, 2010)

4.4 Form of Special Bridge Warrants (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 29, 2010)

4.5t Form of Management Option Agreement (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on March 29,
2010)

4.6 Form of Preferential Reload Warrant (incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31,
2012 filed on May 15, 2012)

4.7 Form of Reload Warrants (incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 filed
on May 15, 2012)

4.8 Form of Series 1 Warrant (incorporated by reference from Annex F to our Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-180609)
originally filed with the SEC on April 6, 2012)

4.9 Form of Series 2 Warrant (incorporated by reference from Annex G to our Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-180609)
originally filed with the SEC on April 6, 2012)

10.1F Vringo, Inc. 2012 Employee, Director and Consultant Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012 filed on November 14, 2012)

10.2F Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 26, 2012)

10.3F Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on July 26,
2012)

10.4 Master Content Provider Agreement, dated June 3, 2009, by and between Vringo and Maxis Mobile Services SDN BHD (incorporated by
reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filing on January 29, 2010)

10.5 Marketing Agreement, dated June 30, 2009, by and between Vringo and Emirates Telecommunications Corporation (incorporated by
reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filing on January 29, 2010)

10.6 Marketing Agreement, dated December 29, 2009, by and between Vringo and Hungama Digital Media Entertainment Pvt. Ltd.
(incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filing on January 29, 2010)

10.7 Summary of Rental Agreement, dated March 27, 2006, by and between Vringo and BIG Power Centers (incorporated by reference from
our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filing on January 29, 2010)

10.87 Employment Agreement, dated February 13, 2013, by and between Vringo and Andrew D. Perlman (incorporated by reference from our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2012 filed on March 21, 2013)

10.97 Employment Agreement, dated February 13, 2013, by and between Vringo and Alexander R. Berger (incorporated by reference from our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2012 filed on March 21, 2013)
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Employment Agreement, dated June 22, 2011, by and between Innovate/Protect, Inc. and Andrew Kennedy Lang, as amended by
Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated November 14, 2011, and Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated
March 11, 2012 (incorporated by reference from our 8-K filed on July 20, 2012)

Agreement on Cooperation, dated July 15, 2010, between Vringo and Retromedya (incorporated by reference from our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on July 19, 2010)

Marketing Agreement, dated August 19, 2010, between Vringo and Everything Everywhere Limited. (incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-Q filing on November 15, 2010)

Collaboration Agreement, dated September 15, 2010, between Vringo and Starhub Mobile PTE Ltd. (incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-Q filing on November 15, 2010)

Employment Agreement, dated December 15, 2010, by and between Vringo and Ellen Cohl (incorporated by reference from our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2010)

Intercompany Cost Plus Agreement (incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K filing on March 31, 2011)
License agreement with ZTE Corporation, dated November 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference from our 10-K filed on March 30, 2012)

Employment Agreement, dated December 15, 2010, by and between Vringo and Ellen Cohl (incorporated by reference from our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 20, 2010)

Offer letter, dated April 24, 2013, by and between Vringo and Anastasia Nyrkovskaya (incorporated by reference from our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013)

Employment Agreement, dated May 7, 2013, by and between Vringo and David L. Cohen

Agreement dated February 9, 2012, by and between the Company and Facebook, Inc. (incorporated by reference from our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 filed on May 15, 2012)

Lease, dated July 10, 2012, by and between Vringo, Inc. and Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America, for the benefit of
its separate Real Estate Account Landlord (incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended

September 30, 2012 filed on November 14, 2012), as amended on January 24, 2014

Confidential Patent Purchase Agreement, dated August 9, 2012, by and between Vringo, Inc. and Nokia Corporation (incorporated by
reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012 filed on November 14, 2012)

Form of Subscription Agreement, dated October 4, 2012, by and between Vringo, Inc. and each of the investors (incorporated by
reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2012)

Form of Subscription Agreement, dated August 9, 2012, by and between Vringo, Inc. and each of the investors (incorporated by
reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 9, 2012)

Form of Indemnification Agreement, dated January 31, 2013, by and between Vringo, Inc. and each of its Directors and Executive
Officer (incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2012 filed on March 21,
2013)

Subsidiaries of Vringo, Inc.

Consent of Somekh Chaikin, a member firm of KPMG International, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of Principal Executive pursuant to Exchange Act, Rules 13a — 14(a) and 15d — 14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a — 14(a) and 15d — 14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Vringo, Inc. Patent Portfolio
XBLR Instance Document

XBLR Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
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101.CAL* XBLR Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* XBLR Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* XBLR Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* XBLR Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith.
**  Furnished herewith.
T Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

T+  Certain portions have been omitted pursuant to a confidential treatment request. Omitted information has been filed separately with the SEC.
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Exhibit 3.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
VRINGO, INC.

Vringo, Inc. (the “Corporation”), a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the
“DGCL”), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:

1. The name of the Corporation is Vringo, Inc. The Corporation’s original Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on
January 9, 2006. An Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on May 9, 2006, July
12, 2006, August 9, 2006 and July 30, 2007. An amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Secretary of State of
the State of Delaware on February 21, 2008 and December 29, 2009.

2. That the Board of Directors duly adopted resolutions setting forth a proposed amendment and restatement of the Amended and Restated Certificate
of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment and restatement to be advisable and directing its officers to submit said amendment and
restatement to the stockholders of the Corporation for consideration thereof. The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment and restatement is as
follows:

“THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation is hereby amended to read in its
entirety as follows, subject to the required consent of the stockholders of the Corporation:

FIRST: The name of the Corporation (hereinafter the “Corporation”) is Vringo, Inc.

SECOND: The address, including street, number, city and county, of the registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 1209 Orange
Street, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19801; and the name of the Registered Agent of the Corporation at such address is The Corporation
Trust Company.

THIRD: The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be
organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”).

FOURTH: The Corporation is authorized to issue two classes of stock to be designated, respectively, Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share
(“Common Stock”) and Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Preferred Stock”). The total number of shares the Corporation shall have the authority to
issue is one hundred fifty-five million (155,000,000) shares, one hundred fifty million (150,000,000) shares of which shall be Common Stock and five million
(5,000,000) shares of which shall be Preferred Stock.

(1) Common Stock. The voting, dividend and liquidation rights of the holders of the Common Stock are subject to and qualified by the rights of
the holders of the Preferred Stock of any series as may be designated by the Board of Directors upon any issuance of the Preferred Stock or any series. The
holders of the Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share held at all meetings of stockholders. There shall be no cumulative voting. Dividends may
be declared and paid on the Common Stock from funds lawfully available therefor as and when determined by the Board of Directors and subject to any
preferential dividend rights of any then outstanding Preferred Stock. Upon the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary,
holders of the Corporation will be entitled to receive ratably all assets of the Corporation available for distribution to stockholders, subject to any preferential
rights of any then outstanding Preferred Stock.

(2) Preferred Stock. Shares of Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series, each of such series to have such terms as
stated in the resolution or resolutions providing for the establishment of such series adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation as hereinafter
provided. Authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board of Directors of the Corporation to issue, from time to time, shares of Preferred Stock in one or
more series, and, in connection with the establishment of any such series by resolution or resolutions, to determine and fix such voting powers, full or limited,
or no voting powers, and such other powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and the qualifications,
limitations and restrictions thereof, if any, including, without limitation, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences,
as shall be stated in such resolution or resolutions, all to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
resolution or resolutions providing for the establishment of any series of Preferred Stock may, to the extent permitted by law, provide that such series shall be
superior to, rank equally with or be junior to the Preferred Stock of any other series. The powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other
special rights of each series of Preferred Stock, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, may be different from those of any and all
other series at any time outstanding. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the resolution or resolutions providing for the establishment of any series of
Preferred Stock, no vote of the holders of shares of Preferred Stock or Common Stock shall be a prerequisite to the issuance of any shares of any series of the
Preferred Stock authorized by and complying with the conditions of this Certificate of Incorporation.




FIFTH: (1) The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of a Board of Directors having that number of
directors set out in the Bylaws of the Corporation as adopted or as set forth from time to time by a duly adopted amendment thereto by the Board of Directors
or stockholders of the Corporation.

(2) No director (other than directors elected by one or more series of Preferred Stock) may be removed from office by the stockholders except for

cause and, in addition to any other vote required by law, upon the affirmative vote of not less than 66 2/3% of the total voting power of all outstanding
securities of the Corporation then entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class.

(3) Each director shall hold office until such director’s successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until such director’s earlier death,
resignation or removal. Vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, removal or otherwise and newly created directorships resulting
from any increase in the number of directors (other than directors elected by one or more series of Preferred Stock) may be filled solely by a vote of a
majority of the directors then in office (although less than a quorum) or by a sole remaining director, and each director so elected shall serve for the remainder
of the full term of the director whose death, resignation or removal shall have created such vacancy and until his or her successor shall have been elected and
qualified. Whenever the holders of one or more classes or series of Preferred Stock shall have the right, voting separately as a class or series, to elect
directors, the nomination, election, term of office, filling of vacancies, removal and other features of such directorships shall not be governed by this Article
FIFTH unless otherwise provided for in the certificate of designation for such classes or series.

SIXTH: The Corporation is to have perpetual existence.

SEVENTH: The following provisions are inserted for the management of the business and the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation and for the
further definition of the powers of the Corporation and its directors and stockholders:

(1) The Board of Directors is expressly authorized to make, adopt, amend, alter, rescind or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the stockholders may adopt, amend, alter, rescind or repeal the Bylaws with, in addition to any other vote required by law, the affirmative vote

of the holders of not less than 66 2/3% of the total voting power of all outstanding securities of the Corporation then entitled to vote generally in the election
of directors, voting together as a single class.

(2) Elections of directors need not be by written ballot unless the Bylaws of the Corporation so provide.

(3) Special meetings of the stockholders of the Corporation for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board
of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer or at the written request of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors and may not be called by any
other person; provided, however, that if and to the extent that any special meeting of stockholders may be called by any other person or persons specified in
any provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation or any amendment thereto or any certificate filed under Section 151(g) of the DGCL, then such special
meeting may also be called by the person or persons, in the manner, at the times and for the purposes so specified.

EIGHTH: The Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by the provisions of Section 145 of the DGCL, as the same may be amended and
supplemented from time to time, indemnify any and all persons whom it shall have power to indemnify under said section from and against any and all of the
expenses, liabilities or other matters referred to in or covered by said section as amended or supplemented (or any successor), and the indemnification
provided for herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of
stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and
shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and
administrators of such a person.

NINTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director, provided that this Article shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director (i) for any breach of his or her duty of loyalty to the
Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law,

(iii) under Section 174 of the DGCL or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derives an improper personal benefit.




If the DGCL is hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further limiting or eliminating the personal liability of directors, then the liability
of the director to the Corporation shall be limited or eliminated to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, as so amended from time to time. Any
amendment, repeal or modification of this Article shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the
Corporation under this Article NINTH in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to the time of such amendment, repeal or modification.

TENTH: Each reference in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to any provision of the DGCL refers to the specified provision of
the DGCL, as the same now exists or as it may hereafter be amended or superseded.

ELEVENTH: The Corporation reserves the right at any time and from time to time to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by the laws of the State of Delaware; and all rights conferred on stockholders,

directors or any other persons herein are granted subject to this reservation.

3. That said Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation has been consented to and authorized by the holders of a majority of the issued and
outstanding stock entitled to vote in accordance with the provisions of Section 228 of the DGCL.

4. That said Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation was duly adopted in accordance with the applicable provisions of Sections 242 and 245
of the DGCL.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Vringo, Inc. has caused this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be signed by its Chief Executive Officer,
on this 22nd day of June, 2010.

VRINGO, INC.

By: /s/ Jonathan Medved

Name: Jonathan Medved
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Originally adopted: June 22, 2010
Amended: July 19, 2012




Exhibit 10.19

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the 7th day of May, 2013 (the "Effective Date"), and is by
and between David L. Cohen, an individual residing at the address listed in Exhibit A ("Employee"), and Vringo, Inc., a Delaware corporation with principal

offices located at 780 3t Avenue, 15th Floor, New York, NY 10017 (the "Company").

WHEREAS, the Employee desires to continue to be employed by the Company as its Chief Legal and Intellectual Property Officer under the
terms set forth herein and the Company wishes to continue to employ Employee in such capacity;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the respective covenants and agreements of the parties contained in this
document, the Company and Employee hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment and Duties.

(a) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Company agrees to employ, and Employee agrees to serve, as its Chief Legal and
Intellectual Property Officer. The duties and responsibilities of Employee shall include the duties and responsibilities normally associated with such positions
and such other duties and responsibilities consistent with such positions as the Company's Chief Executive Officer may from time to time reasonably assign in
good faith to Employee. At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Employee shall report directly to the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ").

(b) Employee shall devote substantially all of his working time and efforts during the Company's normal business hours to the
business and affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries and to the diligent and faithful performance of the duties and responsibilities duly assigned to him
pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall preclude Employee from (i) performing services for such other companies as
the Company may designate or permit, (ii) serving, with the prior written consent of the CEO, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, as an officer
or member of the boards of directors or advisory boards (or their equivalents in the case of a non-corporate entity) of non-competing businesses or charitable,
educational or civic organizations, (iii) engaging in charitable activities and community affairs, and (iv) managing Employee's personal investments and
affairs; provided, however, that the activities set out in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) shall be limited by Employee so as not to materially interfere, individually
or in the aggregate, with the performance of Employee's duties and responsibilities hereunder.

(o) The Company hereby agrees to employ Employee and Employee hereby accepts employment with the Company, upon the
terms set forth in this Agreement, for the period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the three year anniversary of the Effective Date, unless
sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 below (the “Employment Term”). At the end of the Employment Term this Agreement shall
terminate except as otherwise provided herein.




2. Place of Employment. Employee's services shall be performed at the Company's offices located at 780 3" Avenue, 15th Floor, New
York 10017 and any other locus where the Company and Employee mutually agree is an acceptable location from which Employee's services may be
performed. The parties acknowledge that any location in the Borough of Manhattan, City of New York, is an acceptable location. The parties further
acknowledge, however, that Employee may be required to travel extensively in connection with the performance of his duties hereunder which travel may be
for extended periods of time.

3. Base Salary. For all services to be rendered by Employee pursuant to this Agreement, the Company agrees to pay Employee during the
term of this Agreement an annual base salary, less applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions (the "Base
Salary") at an annual rate of three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000). The Compensation Committee shall review the Base Salary on an annual basis and
may increase the Base Salary in its sole discretion. The Base Salary shall be paid in periodic installments in accordance with the Company's regular payroll
practices.

4. Bonuses and Incentive Compensation. On an annual basis, or such other period to be determined by the Compensation Committee,
Employee shall be entitled to be considered for a bonus. The size of such periodic bonus and the criterion for receipt of such periodic bonus shall be
determined by the Compensation Committee. To the extent that the Company is required pursuant to Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act to develop and implement a policy (the "Policy") providing for the recovery from the Employee of any payment of incentive-based
compensation paid to the Employee that was based upon erroneous data contained in an accounting statement, this Agreement shall be deemed amended and
the Policy incorporated herein by reference as of the date that the Company takes all necessary corporate action to adopt the Policy, without requiring any
further action of the Company or the Employee; provided, that, any such Policy shall only be binding on the Employee if the same Policy applies to any other
Company employees.

5. Expenses. Employee shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable and appropriate travel, entertainment, and other expenses
incurred by Employee while employed (in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Company for its employees) in the performance of
his duties and responsibilities under this Agreement; provided, that, Employee properly accounts for such expenses in accordance with Company policies and
procedures. The Employee shall be responsible for any unreasonable or inappropriate expenses incurred in violation of Company policies and procedures.

6. Other Benefits. Employee shall be eligible to participate in all benefit programs that are generally available to the Company's
employees, including vacation, Company-subsidized medical, dental, and vision insurance coverage and, at your election, life insurance and/or long-term
disability coverage which current benefits are described more fully in the Ambrose Orientation Guide.




7. Termination of Employment.

(@ General. The Employee's employment hereunder shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of: (i) Employee's death, (ii) a
termination by reason of Employee's Disability, (iii) a termination by the Company with or without Cause, or (iv) a termination by Employee with or without
Good Reason. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payment (or commencement of a series of payments) hereunder of any nonqualified
deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, (the "Code")) upon a termination of employment shall be delayed
until such time as Employee has also undergone a "separation from service" as defined in Treas. Reg. 1.409A-1(h), at which time such nonqualified deferred
compensation (calculated as of the date of Employee's termination of employment hereunder) shall be paid (or commence to be paid) to Employee on the
schedule set forth in this Section 7 as if Employee had undergone such termination of employment (under the same circumstances) on the date of Employee's
ultimate "separation from service."

(b) Death. If Employee dies while this Agreement is in effect, this Agreement and the Employee's employment with the Company
shall automatically terminate and the Company shall have no further obligations to the Employee or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to
compensation and benefits accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to pay to the Employee's heirs, administrators or executors (i) any earned but unpaid
Base Salary up to and through the date of termination, (ii) any and all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Employee in connection with and related to
the performance of his duties and responsibilities for the Company up to and through the date of termination, and (iii) any benefits provided under the
Company's employee benefit plans pursuant to, and in accordance with, the terms of such plans through the date of termination (collectively, the "Accrued
Obligations"). The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other
appropriate deductions.

(o) Disability. In the event that while this Agreement is in effect the Company determines that the Employee is unable to perform
his essential duties and responsibilities hereunder to the full extent required by the Company by reason of a Disability (as defined below), this Agreement and
the Employee's employment with the Company shall terminate immediately upon notice to the Employee, and the Company shall have no further obligations
or liability to the Employee or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits accruing thereafter, except for the obligation to
pay the Accrued Obligations. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and
other appropriate deductions. For purposes of this Agreement, "Disability" shall mean a physical or mental disability that prevents the performance by the
Employee, with or without reasonable accommodation, of his essential duties and responsibilities hereunder for ninety (90) consecutive days, or an aggregate
of one-hundred and eighty (180) days during any twelve consecutive months, as determined consistent with applicable law. It is expressly acknowledged and
agreed that the decision as to whether and as of what date Employee has a Disability shall be determined by the Company.




(d) By the Company for Cause.

1) The Company may at any time terminate this Agreement and the Employee's employment hereunder for Cause. Such
termination shall be effective immediately upon notice to the Employee.

"Cause" as used in this Agreement shall mean: (a) the willful and continued failure of the Employee to perform substantially his
duties and responsibilities for the Company (other than any such failure resulting from Employee's death or Disability) after a written
demand by the CEO for substantial performance is delivered to the Employee by the Company, which specifically identifies the manner in
which the CEO believes that the Employee has not substantially performed his duties and responsibilities and explicitly states that
termination for “Cause” under Section 7(d) of this Agreement, which willful and continued failure is not cured by the Employee within
thirty (30) days of his receipt of such written demand; (b) the conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a felony, (c) a breach of
Section 8 of this Agreement, (d) a breach of the Non-Disclosure and Non-Solicitation Agreement of even date herewith; or (e) a good faith
finding by the CEO that Employee has engaged in fraud, intentional dishonesty, or gross negligence.

2) Upon termination of this Agreement for Cause, the Company shall have no further obligations or liability to the
Employee or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except for the obligation to pay the
Employee the Accrued Obligations. The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income
tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.

3) It is expressly acknowledged and agreed that the decision as to whether Cause" exists for termination of the
employment relationship by the Company is delegated to the CEO for determination.

(e) By the Employee for Good Reason.

) Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 7(e)(2) below, the Employee may terminate this Agreement and the
Employee's employment with the Company for Good Reason. "Good Reason" as used in this Agreement shall mean the occurrence of any
of the following events: (a) the assignment, without the Employee's consent, to the Employee of duties that result in a substantial diminution
of the duties that he assumed on the Effective Date; (b) the assignment, without the Employee's consent, to the Employee of a title that is
subordinate to the title set forth in Section 1 above; (c) a material reduction in Employee's Base Salary; (d) the Company's requirement that
Employee regularly report to work in a location that is more than fifty miles from the Company's then office in the Borough of Manhattan,
City of New York without the Employee's consent, provided that travel even if for extended period of time shall not constitute Good
Reason; or (e) a material breach by the Company of this Agreement during the Employment Term.




) The Employee shall not be entitled to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason unless and until he shall have
delivered written notice to the Company of his intention to terminate this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good
Reason within thirty (30) days of the initial occurrence of the condition(s) constituting Good Reason, which notice specifies in reasonable
detail the circumstances claimed to provide the basis for such termination for Good Reason, and the Company shall not have eliminated the
circumstances constituting Good Reason within thirty (30) days of its receipt from the Employee of such written notice. The Company shall
retain the discretion to terminate the Employee at any time without Cause (or for Cause if in accordance with Section 7(d)) during the Good
Reason notice period provided for in this Section 7(e)(2).

3) In the event that the Employee terminates this Agreement and his employment with the Company for Good Reason,
the Company shall pay or provide to the Employee (or, following his death, to the Employee's heirs, administrators or executors):

(A) The Accrued Obligations through the date of termination of employment.

(B) An amount of Base Salary (at the rate of Base Salary in effect immediately prior to the Employee's
termination hereunder) equal to twelve (12) months of Base Salary. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Company shall
pay to Employee the amounts provided in this Section 7(e)(3)(B) in substantially equal installments commencing on the Company's
next regular payroll date following the date the Release (referenced in Section 7(i) below) becomes irrevocable and enforceable;
provided, however, that if the ninety (90) day period referenced in Section 7(i) below begins in one calendar year and ends in the
following calendar year, the Company shall pay to Employee the amounts provided in this Section 7(e)(3)(B) in substantially equal
installments commencing on the Company's first eligible regular payroll date occurring in the following calendar year. The Company
shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate
deductions.




©) Subject to Section 7(i) below, COBRA continuation coverage paid in full by the Company, so long as
Employee has not become actually covered by the medical plan of a subsequent employer during any such month and is otherwise
entitled to COBRA continuation coverage, with such payments for up to a maximum of twelve (12) months following the date of
termination. After such period, Employee is responsible for paying the full cost for any additional COBRA continuation coverage to
which Employee is then entitled. If the Company's payment of the COBRA premiums on the Employee's behalf would violate the
nondiscrimination rules or cause the reimbursement of claims to be taxable under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of
2010, together with the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, the "Act") or Section 105(h) of the Code,
the Company paid premiums shall be treated as taxable payments and be subject to imputed income tax treatment to the extent
necessary to eliminate any discriminatory treatment or taxation under the Act or Section 105(h) of the Code.

® By_Employee without Good Reason. The Employee shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the Employee's
employment with the Company without Good Reason at any time by providing prior written notice to the Company of at least ninety (90) calendar days;
provided, however, that the Company shall maintain the discretion to terminate the Employee at any time during the notice period set forth in this Section
7(f). Upon termination by the Employee of this Agreement and the Employee's employment with the Company without Good Reason, the Company shall
have no further obligations or liability to the Employee or his heirs, administrators or executors with respect to compensation and benefits thereafter, except
for the obligation to pay the Employee the Accrued Obligations through the date the Employee is terminated. The Company shall deduct, from all payments
made hereunder, all applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions.

(8) By the Company without Cause. The Company shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the Employee's employment
with the Company at any time without Cause upon written notice to the Employee. Upon termination by the Company of this Agreement and the Employee's
employment with the Company without Cause in accordance with the Company’s notice of termination, the Company shall pay or provide to the Employee at
the time the Company has in fact terminated the Employee (or, following his death, to the Employee's heirs, administrators or executors) the amounts and
benefits due upon a resignation for Good Reason, as further described in Section 7(e)(3). The Company shall deduct, from all payments made hereunder, all
applicable taxes, including income tax, FICA and FUTA, and other appropriate deductions. If the Employee leaves prior to the date of termination set forth in
the notice the Company shall have no obligation to pay the Employee any amounts or benefits as set forth in this Section 7(g) and such termination shall be
treated as a termination by Employee without Good Reason pursuant to Section 7(f).




(h) Release of Claims. It is agreed that an express condition of the payment or provision by the Company of any severance amount
or post-termination benefit called for under Section 7(e)(3) and Section 7(g) of this Agreement (other than the payment of any Accrued Obligations) shall be
subject to the Company's concurrent receipt of a general release of all claims against the Company and its affiliates by Employee in the form reasonably
acceptable to the Company and Employee, and such release must be effective and irrevocable prior to the ninetieth (90th) day following the termination of the
Employee's employment (the "Release").

@) Additional Section 409A Provisions. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary:

(@) Any payment otherwise required to be made hereunder to Employee at any date as a result of the termination of
Employee's employment that constitutes non-qualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code shall be delayed for such
period of time as may be necessary to meet the requirements of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code (the "Delay Period"). On the first
business day following the expiration of the Delay Period, Employee shall be paid, in a single cash lump sum, an amount equal to the
aggregate amount of all payments delayed pursuant to the preceding sentence, and any remaining payments not so delayed shall continue to
be paid pursuant to the payment schedule set forth herein.

2) Each payment in a series of payments hereunder shall be deemed to be a separate payment for purposes of Section
409A of the Code.
3) To the extent that any right to reimbursement of expenses or payment of any benefit in-kind under this Agreement

constitutes nonqualified deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), (i) any such expense reimbursement
shall be made by the Company no later than the last day of the taxable year following the taxable year in which such expense was incurred
by Employee, (ii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit, and (iii)
the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during any taxable year shall not affect the expenses eligible
for reimbursement or in-kind benefits to be provided in any other taxable year; provided, that, the foregoing clause shall not be violated
with regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code solely because such expenses are subject
to a limit related to the period the arrangement is in effect.

8. Covenant Not to Compete.




(@ The Employee recognizes that the services to be performed by him hereunder are special, unique and extraordinary. The parties
confirm that it is reasonably necessary for the protection of the Company that the Employee agree, and accordingly, the Employee does hereby agree, that, he
shall not, directly or indirectly, at any time during the "Restricted Period" within the "Restricted Area" engage in any "Restricted Business Activity" (as those
terms are defined in Sections 8(b), (c) and (d) below).

(b) The term "Restricted Business Activity" as used in this Section 8, means that the Employee shall not, directly or indirectly:

1) provide services, either on his own behalf or as an officer, director, partner, consultant, associate, employee, owner,
agent, independent contractor, or co-venturer of any third party, (i) the primary value of which is monetizing patent portfolios or (ii) to any
company primarily engaged in the business of monetizing patent portfolios. For the avoidance of doubt, engaging in the licensing of patents
to or from third parties for the purpose of development and sale of products and services incorporating such patents by the licensee is not a
competing activity; or

2) solicit any material commercial relationships of the Company, other than in the furtherance of the business of the
Company during the Employee’s employment with the Company;

provided, however, that Restricted Business Activity shall not be construed to prevent the Employee from (i) owning, directly or indirectly, in the aggregate,
an amount not exceeding two percent (2%) of the issued and outstanding voting securities of any class of any company whose voting capital stock is traded or
listed on a national securities exchange or in the over-the-counter market; (ii) providing services to any division, department or branch of another company
that does not itself engage in whole or in part in the business of innovation, development and monetization of mobile technologies and intellectual property;
or (iii) soliciting any material commercial relationships of the Company for the purpose of selling products or providing services that are not the same or
substantially similar to the products or services sold by the Company during the Employee’s employment with the Company.

(o) The term "Restricted Period," as used in this Section 8, shall mean during the period of time the Employee is employed with
the Company plus one (1) year after the date the Employee is actually no longer employed by the Company.

(d) The term "Restricted Area" as used in this Section 8 shall mean worldwide.
(e) If any of the restrictions contained in this Section 8 shall be deemed to be unenforceable by reason of the extent, duration or

geographical scope thereof, or otherwise, then the court making such determination shall have the right to reduce such extent, duration, geographical scope, or
other provisions hereof, and in its reduced form this Section shall then be enforceable in the manner contemplated hereby.




) The provisions of this Section 8 shall survive the termination of the Employee's employment hereunder and until the end of the
Restricted Period.

9. Miscellaneous.

(©) The Employee acknowledges that the services to be rendered by him under the provisions of this Agreement are of a special,
unique and extraordinary character and that it would be difficult or impossible to replace such services. Furthermore, the parties acknowledge that monetary
damages alone would not be an adequate remedy for any breach by the Employee of this Agreement. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that any breach or
threatened breach by him of this Agreement shall entitle the Company, in addition to all other legal remedies available to it, to apply to any court of
competent jurisdiction to seek to enjoin such breach or threatened breach. The parties understand and intend that each restriction agreed to by the Employee
hereinabove shall be construed as separable and divisible from every other restriction, that the unenforceability of any restriction shall not limit the
enforceability, in whole or in part, of any other restriction, and that one or more or all of such restrictions may be enforced in whole or in part as the
circumstances warrant. In the event that any restriction in this Agreement is more restrictive than permitted by law in the jurisdiction in which the Company
seeks enforcement thereof, such restriction shall be limited to the extent permitted by law. The remedy of injunctive relief herein set forth shall be in addition
to, and not in lieu of, any other rights or remedies that the Company may have at law or in equity.

(b) The Employee may not assign or delegate any of his rights or duties under this Agreement without the express written consent
of the Company. The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially
all of the business and/or assets of the Company to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the
Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had taken place. As used in this Agreement, the "Company" shall mean the Company as
hereinbefore defined and any successor to its business and/or assets as aforesaid which executes and delivers the agreement provided for in this subsection (b)
or which otherwise becomes bound by all of the terms and provisions of this Agreement by operation of law.

(o) This Agreement and any other agreement referenced herein, constitutes and embodies the full and complete understanding and
agreement of the parties with respect to the Employee's employment by the Company, and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral
or written, between the Employee and the Company, and shall not be amended, modified or changed except by an instrument in writing executed by the party
to be charged. The invalidity or partial invalidity of one or more provisions of this Agreement shall not invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. No
waiver by either party of any provision or condition to be performed shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions at the same
time or any prior or subsequent time.




(d) Employee acknowledges that he has had the opportunity to be represented by separate independent counsel in the negotiation of
this Agreement, has consulted with his attorney of choice, or voluntarily chose not to do so, concerning the execution and meaning of this Agreement, and has
read this Agreement and fully understands the terms hereof, and is executing the same of his own free will. Employee warrants and represents that he has had
sufficient time to consider whether to enter into this Agreement and that he is relying solely on his own judgment and the advice of his own counsel, if any, in
deciding to execute this Agreement.

(e) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, be binding upon and enforceable against, the parties hereto and their respective
successors, heirs, beneficiaries and permitted assigns.

® If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, Section 8 shall survive termination of this Agreement.
(g) [Intentionally Blank]
(h) The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or

interpretation of this Agreement.

@) All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been duly given when personally delivered, sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by
reputable national overnight delivery service (e.g. FedEx) for overnight delivery to the party at the address set forth in the preamble to this Agreement, or to
such other address as either party may hereafter give the other party notice of in accordance with the provisions hereof. Notices shall be deemed given on the
sooner of the date actually received or the third business day after deposited in the mail or one business day after deposited with an overnight delivery service
for overnight delivery.

1)) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York without
reference to principles of conflicts of laws and each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state

courts located in the County and State of New York.

k) This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one of the same instrument. The parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.

) The Employee represents and warrants to the Company, that he has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement
and to perform his obligations hereunder and that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of his obligations hereunder will not
conflict with any agreement to which Employee is a party.

(m) Each Party will pay its own costs and expenses related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

[Signature Page Follows]
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[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employee and the Company have caused this Employment Agreement to be executed as of the date first above
written.

/s/ David L. Cohen
DAVID L. COHEN

VRINGO, INC.

By: /s/ Andrew D. Perlman
Name: Andrew D. Perlman
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 10.21
FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE
This FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE dated as of January 24, 2014 (the “Amendment”) between T-C 780 THIRD AVENUE OWNER
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (successor-in-interest to TEACHERS INSURANCE AND ANNUITY ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, for the
benefit of its separate Real Estate Account) having an office at 730 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10017 (“Landlord”), and VRINGO, INC., a

Delaware corporation having an office at 780 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10017 (“Tenant”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Lease dated as of July 26, 2012 (the “Lease”), covering a portion of the fifteenth

(15th) floor (the “Existing Premises™) of the building known as 780 Third Avenue, New York, New York (the “Building”), all as more particularly described
in the Lease; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to modify the Lease to (i) provide for the substitution of a portion of the twelfth (12th) floor of the
Building (the “New Premises”) (being more particularly shown on Exhibit A attached hereto) for the Existing Premises, and (ii) otherwise modify the terms
and conditions of the Lease, all as hereinafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows:

1. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in
the Lease.

2. Existing Premises.

(a) Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that the term of the Lease with respect to the Existing Premises will expire on the date that the Landlord’s
Work (as hereinafter defined) with respect to the New Premises is Substantially Completed (as hereinafter defined) (the “Existing Premises New Expiration
Date”), or such earlier date upon which the term of the Lease may expire or be terminated pursuant to any of the conditions of limitation or other provisions
of the Lease or pursuant to law.

(b) On the Existing Premises New Expiration Date, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord possession of the Existing Premises vacant and broom clean,
free of all occupancies and encumbrances and otherwise in accordance with the terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease. In the event Tenant fails to
vacate and surrender possession of the Existing Premises in accordance with the terms of the Lease, Landlord will have the right to exercise all of its rights
and remedies provided at law, in equity and/or in the Lease, including, without limitation, Article 21 of the Lease.




(c) Tenant hereby represents and warrants that: (i) except for Tenant, the Existing Premises is presently free of all occupancies, (ii) Tenant has not
created or suffered any rights in any other party, as tenant, subtenant or occupant, in and/or to the Existing Premises through and including the date of this
Amendment and (iii) no materials, personalty, furnishings, personal property, fixtures, trade fixtures and equipment (“Property”) presently in the Existing
Premises are subject to any lien, encumbrance, chattel mortgage, title retention or security agreement, other than Tenant’s lease of its photocopy machine(s).
Tenant covenants and agrees that it shall not at any time hereafter create, suffer or permit the creation of any such rights or encumbrances in or to the Existing
Premises or the Property contained therein. Tenant will remove its Property (and repair any damage caused by such removal) from the Existing Premises on
or before the Existing Premises New Expiration Date. Any Property left in the Existing Premises by Tenant after the Existing Premises New Expiration Date
shall be deemed to have been abandoned by Tenant, and Landlord shall have the right to retain or dispose of such Property in any manner without any
obligation to account to Tenant therefor, and Tenant will reimburse Landlord for Landlord’s actual out-of-pocket costs for any such retention or disposal of
such Property upon demand. Following the vacation and surrender by Tenant to Landlord of the Existing Premises in accordance with the terms of the Lease,
neither party shall have any obligation to the other party with respect to the Existing Premises, except with respect to those obligations which are intended to
survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease with respect to the Existing Premises.

3. Lease of the New Premises.

(a) Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, the New Premises for a term commencing on the date (the “New
Premises Commencement Date”) that the Landlord’s Work has been Substantially Completed (or would have been Substantially Completed but for a Tenant
Delay), and ending on the date preceding the five (5) year and three (3) month anniversary of the New Premises Commencement Date (provided, however, if
the New Premises Commencement Date is not the first date of a calendar month, then ending on the last day of the month in which occurs the five (5) year
and three (3) month anniversary of the New Premises Commencement Date) (the applicable date, the “New Premises Expiration Date”), or such earlier date
upon which the term of the Lease may expire or be terminated pursuant to any of the conditions of limitation or other provisions of the Lease or pursuant to
law, upon all of the terms and conditions of the Lease and this Amendment. Upon the date hereof, the terms and provisions hereof shall be fully binding on
Landlord and Tenant.

(b) If the New Premises Commencement Date has not occurred on or before any specified date, for any reason whatsoever, Landlord shall not be
liable to Tenant for any damage thereby, this Amendment shall not be void or voidable thereby, and the term of the New Premises shall not commence until
Landlord tenders possession of the New Premises to Tenant in the condition required under this Amendment. Once the New Premises Commencement Date,
is determined, Landlord and Tenant shall execute an agreement stating the New Premises Commencement Date, the New Premises Rent Commencement
Date and the New Premises Expiration Date, but the failure to do so will not affect the determination of such dates. Tenant expressly waives any right to
rescind the Lease and/or this Amendment under Section 223-a of the New York Real Property Law or under any present or future statute of similar import
then in force and further expressly waives the right to recover any damages from Landlord, direct or indirect, which may result from the failure of the New
Premises Commencement Date to occur on a particular date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the New Premises Commencement Date has not
occurred on or prior to the date that is six (6) months following the date hereof (the “Outside Date”) (which Outside Date will be subject to extension for
Tenant Delay and/or Force Majeure), then, as Tenant’s sole and exclusive remedy with respect thereto, the New Premises Rent Commencement Date (as
hereinafter defined) shall be extended by one (1) day for each day after the Outside Date that the New Premises Commencement Date has not occurred.




(c) Effective as of the New Premises Commencement Date, Tenant shall lease the New Premises upon all of the terms and conditions of the Lease,
except as follows:

(i) The Fixed Rent payable under the Lease with respect to the New Premises shall be an amount equal to (A) $403,125 per annum

($33,593.75 per month) for the period commencing on the New Premises Commencement Date and ending on the date preceding the third (3rd)
anniversary of the New Premises Commencement Date (as hereinafter defined) (such period, the “First Period”; the date the First Period expires
being referred to herein as the “First Period Expiration Date), both dates inclusive, (B) $416,025 per annum ($34,668.75 per month) for the period
commencing on the date following the First Period Expiration Date and ending on the New Premises Expiration Date, both dates inclusive, payable
at the times and in the manner specified in the Lease for the payment of Fixed Rent.

(ii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereinabove, during any portion of the Abatement Period (as hereinafter defined) when Tenant
is not in default under the Lease beyond the expiration of the applicable notice and cure period, Tenant will be entitled to an abatement (the
“Abatement”) of Fixed Rent for the period from the New Premises Commencement Date to the date preceding the three (3) month anniversary of the
New Premises Commencement Date (as the same may be reduced as provided herein) (the “Abatement Period”); provided, however, that during the
period in which the Abatement is effective, Tenant shall not be relieved of its obligation to pay any other component of Additional Rent or Rent
during such Abatement Period or its obligation to pay charges for utilities for which Tenant is separately metered. Tenant acknowledges that the
consideration for the Abatement is Tenant’s agreement to perform all of the other terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease on its part to be
performed. Therefore, if the Lease shall be terminated on or before the New Premises Expiration Date by reason of Tenant’s default thereunder, the
entire amount of the Fixed Rent that was abated shall immediately thereafter become due and payable by Tenant to Landlord. In the event of
Tenant’s failure to pay such aggregate amount to Landlord under such circumstances, Landlord shall be entitled to the same rights and remedies as in
the event of Tenant’s default in the payment of Fixed Rent. The date immediately following the expiration of the Abatement Period is the New
Premises Rent Commencement Date.

(iii) Tenant shall pay, in the aggregate with respect to the New Premises, all Additional Rent payable pursuant to the Lease, including
Article 7 of the Lease, except that (A) the “Premises Area” shall be deemed to mean 6,450 square feet; (B) the “Tenant’s Proportionate Share” shall
be deemed to mean 1.37%; (C) the term “Base Tax Factor” shall mean the average of the Taxes for the 2013/2014 Tax Year and the 2014/2015 Tax
Year; and (D) the term “Base Operating Factor” shall mean the Landlord’s actual Operating Expenses for the 2014 calendar year.




(d) Except as provided in this Amendment, from and after the New Premises Commencement Date, (i) all references in the Lease to the “Premises”
shall be deemed to mean the New Premises, (ii) all references in the Lease to “Term” or “term of this Lease” or words of similar import shall be deemed to
refer to the term of the leasing of the New Premises, (ii) each reference in the Lease to “this Lease”, “herein”, “hereunder” or words of similar import shall be
deemed to refer to the Lease and amended by this Amendment, and (iv) each reference in the Lease to the “Expiration Date” shall be deemed to refer to the
New Premises Expiration Date.

4. Condition of the New Premises.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in the Lease or this Amendment to the contrary, Tenant agrees to accept the New Premises in its “AS-1S”, “WHERE-
IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS?” condition as of the date hereof, and Landlord has no obligation to perform any work, supply any materials, incur any expense
or make any alterations or improvements to prepare the New Premises for Tenant’s occupancy other than Landlord’s obligation to perform the Landlord’s
Work.

(b) Landlord will perform the initial work with respect to the New Premises (the “Landlord’s Work”) pursuant to the workletter (the “Workletter”)
attached hereto as Exhibit B and the final space plans (the “Final Space Plans”) attached hereto as Exhibit C. Landlord will have the right to make changes in
the Landlord’s Work required by any governmental department or bureau having jurisdiction over the Building. Landlord will perform the Landlord’s Work
using brand new finishes that are substantially similar to the finishes in the Existing Premises.

(c) Promptly following the date hereof, based on the Workletter and the Final Space Plans, Landlord will prepare a complete set of construction
drawings for the New Premises (the “Proposed Construction Drawings™”). After delivery of the Proposed Construction Drawings, Tenant shall have three (3)
Business Days to approve the Proposed Construction Drawings, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. If Tenant
disapproves of all or a portion of the Proposed Construction Drawings, Tenant will notify Landlord within such three (3) Business Day period, in which event
Landlord shall revise the Proposed Construction Drawings and resubmit them to Tenant within five (5) Business Days after Landlord’s receipt of written
notice from Tenant. Tenant’s failure to respond to Landlord shall be deemed to be Tenant’s approval of the Proposed Construction Drawings. Tenant shall
respond to Landlord’s request for approval of the revised Proposed Construction Drawings within three (3) Business Days of resubmission. If Tenant
disapproves of all or a portion of the revised Proposed Construction Drawings, Tenant will notify Landlord within such three (3) Business Day period, in
which event Landlord shall further revise the Proposed Construction Drawings and resubmit them to Tenant within five (5) Business Days after Landlord’s
receipt of written notice from Tenant. This procedure shall continue until Tenant finally approves the Proposed Construction Drawings (such approved
Proposed Construction Drawings, the “Final Plans”).




(d) Landlord and Tenant agree that if Tenant requests any change, addition or upgrade to the Final Plans (individually and collectively, “Change
Orders™) prepared by Landlord, such Change Orders must be approved by Landlord and, to the extent they increase the costs of Landlord’s Work, will be paid
for solely by Tenant. If Landlord approves a Change Order, Landlord will promptly notify Tenant of such approval and any additional cost and/or delay
associated with the performance of any such Change Order. Thereafter, Landlord will only proceed with any such Change Order after it receives, within three
(3) Business Days of such notice of any increased costs and/or delay in Substantial Completion of Landlord’s Work as a result thereof, authorization to
proceed from Tenant. In the absence of such written authorization within said three (3) Business Day period, Landlord shall not be obligated to proceed with
such Change Order and shall be deemed to have been authorized by Tenant to proceed without performing such Charge Order.

(e) The Landlord’s Work shall be performed by Landlord only once, it being understood that Landlord’s obligation to perform the Landlord’s Work is
a single, non-recurring obligation. All alterations and improvement made by Landlord on behalf of Tenant as part of the Landlord’s Work constitute
“Improvements,” as such term is defined in the Lease.

(f) In the event Landlord is delayed in Substantially Completing the Landlord’s Work as the result of Tenant Delay, then the Abatement Period will
be reduced by one (1) day for each day of delay attributable to such a Tenant Delay. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if Substantial
Completion of the Landlord’s Work is delayed on account of (i) the failure to have approved Final Plans on or prior to the date which is ten (10) Business
Days after the date that Landlord delivers the Proposed Construction Drawings to Tenant, (ii) any Change Orders requested by Tenant, (iii) the failure by
Tenant to respond within the time period as hereinabove provided when a response by Tenant is requested by Landlord in connection with the performance of
the Landlord’s Work (provided, however, if no specific time period is mentioned, the requisite time period for Tenant to respond is two (2) Business Days
after written notice from Landlord), (iv) any Long Lead Items(s) (as hereinafter defined) requested by Tenant where Landlord notifies Tenant in writing at the
time of such request that the underlying item(s) in such a Long Lead Item, or (v) any interference (other than to a de minimis extent) with construction of the
Landlord’s Work due to Tenant’s entry into the New Premises prior to the Substantial Completion of the Landlord’s Work, then any such delay shall constitute
a “Tenant Delay”. The term “Substantial Completion,” “Substantially Complete,” or any derivation thereof, means that such work has been completed, as
reasonably determined by Landlord’s architect, except for minor details of construction, decoration and mechanical adjustments, if any, the non-completion of
which does not materially interfere with Tenant’s use of the New Premises for the conduct of its business. The term “Long-Lead Item(s)” means any item
which is not a stock item and must be specially manufactured, fabricated or installed or of such unusual, delicate or fragile nature that is a risk that (aa) there
will be a delay in its manufacture, fabrication, delivery or installation or (bb) after delivery, such items will need to be reshipped, redelivered or repaired.

5. Intentionally Omitted.




6. Landlord’s Base Building Work. At its sole cost and expense, Landlord will perform the base building work described in Exhibit D, attached
hereto and made a part hereof.

7. Intentionally Omitted.

8. Insurance. Section 8.01 A. of the Lease is hereby amended by deleting the second and third sentences therein and inserting the following in lieu
thereof: “Landlord, its designated property management firm, its subsidiaries and Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (“TIAA”) shall be
named as additional insureds on the said policies described in clause (A) above (excluding the worker’s compensation policy) and shall be named as loss
payee as to the policies described in clause (C) above and each of the policies provided above in clauses (A) through (C) shall be issued by an insurance
company or companies authorized to do business in New York and which have policyholder ratings not lower than “A-“ and financial ratings not lower than
“VII” in Best’s Insurance Guide (latest edition in effect as of the date hereof and subsequently in effect as of the date of renewal of the required policies).
EACH OF SAID POLICIES SHALL ALSO INCLUDE A WAIVER OF SUBROGATION PROVISION OR ENDORSEMENT IN FAVOR OF
LANDLORD, ITS DESIGNATED PROPERTY INSURANCE MANAGEMENT FIRM, ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND TIAA, AND AN ENDORSEMENT
PROVIDING THAT LANDLORD SHALL RECEIVE THIRTY (30) DAYS PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE OF ANY CANCELLATION OF, NONRENEWAL
OF, REDUCTION OF COVERAGE OR MATERIAL CHANGE IN COVERAGE ON SAID POLICIES.”

9. Electricity. Article 13 of the Lease is amended by deleting “25.92%” wherever it appears and inserting in lieu thereof “68.44%”.

10. Free Use of Freight Elevator. During Tenant’s initial move into the New Premises, Landlord shall, at no cost to Tenant, provide Tenant with up to
twelve (12) hours, in the aggregate, of non-exclusive use of the freight elevator outside of business hours (as such term is defined in Section 12.01 of the
Lease).

11. Sublease. Section 22.02 of the Lease is amended as follows by deleting “sixty (60) days” wherever it appears and inserting in lieu thereof “thirty
(30) days”.

12. Right of First Offer. (a) If at any time following the New Premises Commencement Date any Offer Space shall become Available (as such term is
hereinafter defined), then provided that as of the date of Tenant’s Acceptance Notice and the Offer Space Delivery Date (as hereinafter defined), (x) Tenant is
not then in default under theLease beyond applicable notice and cure periods, and (y) Tenant is in occupancy of the entire Premises, Landlord shall give
Tenant notice (an “Offer Notice”), specifying (A) the location and rentable square footage of such Offer Space, (B) the condition in which such Offer Space
shall be delivered to Tenant, (C) the Fair Market Rental Value (as hereinafter defined) for such Offer Space, (D) the date or estimated date that such offer
space will be delivered to Tenant in the condition required by the Lease (the “Anticipated Offer Space Delivery Date”) and (E) any other relevant terms being
offered by Landlord with respect to such space. The foregoing right of Tenant is hereinafter referred to as the “Tenant’s Right of First Offer”. Tenant’s Right
of First Offer with respect to any Offer Space identified in such Offer Notice shall be subject to Tenant’s satisfaction of the conditions set forth in this




“Fair Market Rental Value” means the fixed annual rent that a willing lessee would pay and a willing lessor would accept for the applicable space,
taking into account all relevant factors.

“Offer Space” means any space that becomes available on floor 12 of the Building.

The term "Available" shall mean, as to any Offer Space, that such Offer Space is vacant and free of any present or future possessory right now or
hereafter existing in favor of any third party, provided, however, that any space that is vacant on the date of this Amendment shall not be deemed to be
Available unless and until such space is first leased to another tenant and then again becomes Available. Anything to the contrary contained herein
notwithstanding, Tenant’s Right of First Offer is subordinate to (x) any right of first offer, right of first refusal, expansion right or similar right or option in
favor of any third party existing as of the date of this Amendment and (y) Landlord’s right to renew or extend the term of any lease to another tenant, whether
or not pursuant to an option or right set forth in such other tenant’s lease.

(b) Within five (5) days after receipt of the Offer Notice, time being of the essence, Tenant shall deliver a notice to Landlord (the “Tenant Offer
Space Notice”) pursuant to which Tenant shall either (i) waive its right to exercise its Right of First Offer with respect to the Offer Space, (ii) accept
Landlord’s offer with respect to all (but not less than all) of the Offer Space on all of the terms and conditions provided in the Offer Notice. If Tenant
exercises the Tenant’s Right of First Offer, Landlord and Tenant shall then enter into an additional space modification of the Lease incorporating such Offer
Space in the Lease with such changes as shall be necessary to modify the terms of the Lease relative to such space.

(c) If Tenant exercises the Tenant’s Right of First Offer, the terms for the Offer Space shall be the same as those for the Premises with the Offer
Space to be thereafter deemed part of the Premises, except that:

(i) Base Rent shall be one hundred (100%) percent of the Fair Market Rental Value; the Base Tax Factor shall be the fiscal tax year in which
the term of the Offer Space commences as part of the Premises, and the Base Operating Factor shall be the calendar year in which the term of the
Offer Space commences as part of the Premises.

(ii) the lease term for the Offer Space shall expire or terminate on the same date the Lease expires or terminates (as the same may be
extended), as the case may be;

(iii) Tenant's Proportionate Share for Taxes and Operating Expenses shall be appropriately adjusted to include the Offer Space;

(iv) Landlord shall have no obligation to perform any work, pay any contribution, provide free rent or render any services to make the Offer
Space ready for Tenant’s use or occupancy, and Tenant shall accept the Offer Space in its “as-is” condition except as provided in the Offer Notice;
provided, that any such concessions shall be prorated and reduced accordingly in the event that the period commencing on the Anticipated Offer
Space Delivery Date through the Expiration Date (without taking into account any unexercised Renewal Term) shall be shorter than the lease term
specified in the Offer Notice; and




(v) if the Anticipated Offer Space Delivery Date is within the last thirty-six (36) months of the term of the Lease, then the New Premises
Expiration Date will be amended to be that date which is the fifth (5t anniversary of the New Premises Expiration Date determined pursuant to this
Amendment; provided, however, that the extension term will be on the terms and conditions determined by Landlord, including, without limitation,
the Fixed Rent. The Fixed Rent payable under the Lease with respect to the Premises for the aforesaid five (5) year period will be the Landlord’s and
Tenant’s mutual determination of Fair Market Rental Value. In the event Landlord and Tenant are unable to agree on such Fair Market Rental Value
within twenty (20) days after Tenant’s delivery of the Tenant Offer Space Notice, the dispute will be resolved in accordance with the then prevailing
Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services (“JAMS”) or its successor for arbitration of
commercial disputes, except that the rules shall be modified as follows: (A) either party may make a request to JAMS to appoint a broker to make
the determination of Fair Market Rental Value, (B) within five (5) days after the appointment of the broker, each party shall submit to the broker its
determination of Fair Market Rental Value, and (C) the broker will make a determination of Fair Market Rental Value by selecting either the amount
set forth by Landlord or Tenant, whichever the broker determines is closer to the Fair Market Rental Value. The broker may not select any other
amount as the Fair Market Rental Value. The determination of the broker will be binding on each of Landlord and Tenant. Landlord and Tenant will
each pay one-half (1/2) of the fees and expenses of the arbitration.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, once any space on the 12 floor has been offered to Tenant, Tenant’s Right of First Offer shall
be null and void and Landlord shall have no further obligation to offer the other Offer Space to Tenant, it being understood that Tenant’s Right of First Offer
is a one-time right during the term of the Lease.

(e) If Landlord is unable to deliver possession of the Offer Space to Tenant for any reason on or before the Anticipated Offer Space Delivery Date,
the Offer Space Delivery Date shall be the date on which Landlord is able to so deliver possession and Landlord shall have no liability to Tenant therefor and

the New York Real Property Law and any other law of like import now or hereafter in effect.

(f) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Paragraph 12, Tenant’s Right of First Offer shall be personal to the Tenant named in
this Amendment.

13. Security Deposit. Simultaneously with the execution of this Amendment, Tenant shall provide to Landlord, as partial consideration for the Lease
and as security and as collateral for the faithful performance and observance by Tenant of the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Lease, an unconditional
irrevocable letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) issued by a bank or other financial institution satisfactory to Landlord, which Letter of Credit shall reflect
Landlord as the beneficiary, shall be for a term of not less than one (1) full calendar year, and shall be in the amount of $201,562.50 (the “Security Deposit™).
The Letter of Credit shall be in substance reasonably acceptable to Landlord, shall provide for payment at a location reasonably acceptable to Landlord, shall
be assignable to any subsequent owner of the Building, and shall provide, in part, that in each instance in which Tenant shall have defaulted under any of the
terms and provisions of the Lease, including but not limited to the payment of Rent and if the same shall not have been cured within any applicable cure
period provided for herein, Landlord shall be entitled to draw upon the Letter of Credit (in a single or multiple draws up to the full amount of the Security
Deposit) to the extent necessary to satisfy the obligations and liabilities of Tenant to Landlord as set forth herein, including but not limited to any amounts
which Landlord may expend or be required to expend by reason of Tenant’s default in respect of any of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of the
Lease, and including but not limited to any damages or deficiency accrued before or after summary proceedings or other re-entry by Landlord. If Landlord
shall apply all or any portion of the Security Deposit, Tenant shall, within ten (10) Business Days following written notice of the amount thereof from
Landlord, provide a new or revised Letter of Credit in such amount as will equal, together with any remaining balance on the Letter of Credit, the Security
Deposit. Promptly following Landlord’s receipt of the Letter of Credit, Landlord will return to Tenant the Tenant’s current cash security deposit.




The Letter of Credit shall be renewed or replaced each year for additional one (1) year periods. The failure of Tenant to provide Landlord with a
renewal or replacement Letter of Credit at least thirty (30) days prior to each expiration thereof during the Term shall be deemed to be a default under the
Lease, and in addition to any and all rights and remedies available to Landlord under the law and/or the Lease, Landlord shall be entitled to draw upon the
Letter of Credit in the full amount of the Security Deposit and to hold the proceeds thereof as a cash security deposit hereunder.

If Tenant performs all of Tenant’s obligations hereunder and is not then in default of its obligations hereunder, the Letter of Credit, or any remaining
cash security deposit, shall be returned to Tenant within sixty (60) days after (a) the expiration of the Lease Term, or (b) Tenant has vacated and delivered
entire possession of the Premises to Landlord in the condition required hereunder, whichever is later.

In the event of transfer of the Building, Landlord shall have the right to transfer the Letter of Credit or any cash security deposit (either, as
applicable, the “Security”) to the transferee and Landlord shall thereupon be released by Tenant from all liability for the return of the Security. Tenant agrees
to look solely to such transferee for the return of the Security, and it is agreed that the provisions hereof shall apply to every transfer made of the Security to
any such transferee.

14. Notices. Section 39 of the Lease is amended by providing that a copy of notices sent by Tenant to Landlord shall also be sent in like manner to:
T-C 780 Third Avenue Owner LLC, c/o TIAA-CREF, 730 Third Avenue, 4th Floor, New York, New York 10017, Attn: Laura M. Palombo, Senior Director,
Asset Management, Global Real Estate, and to: Ingram Yuzek Gainen Carroll & Bertolotti, LLP, 250 Park Avenue, Sixth Floor, New York, NY 10177, Attn:
Shane O’Neill, Esq., In addition, any reference to the “JRT Realty Group, Inc.” therein shall be deemed deleted therefrom.




15. Brokerage. Each party warrants that it has had no dealings with any real estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this
Amendment, other than CBRE, Inc. (the “Landlord’s Broker”) and Newmark Grubb Knight Frank (the “Tenant’s Broker”) and that it knows of no other real
estate broker or agent who is or might be entitled to a commission in connection with this Amendment. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
Landlord and its agents harmless for, from and against all claims for any brokerage commissions, finders’ fees or similar payments by any persons (excluding
Landlord’s Broker) and all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred in connection with such claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. Landlord
hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless for, from and against all claims for any brokerage commissions, finders’ fees or similar
payments by any persons and all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred in connection with such claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

16. Representations and Warranties. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that, as of the date hereof, (a) the Lease is in full force and effect and
has not been modified except pursuant to this Amendment; (b) to Tenant’s actual knowledge, there are no defaults existing under the Lease; (c) to Tenant’s
actual knowledge, there exist no valid abatements, causes of action, counterclaims, disputes, defenses, offsets, credits, deductions, or claims against the
enforcement of any of the terms and conditions of the Lease; (d) this Amendment has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Tenant and constitutes
the legal, valid and binding obligation of Tenant; and (e) to Tenant’s actual knowledge, Landlord is not in default of any of its obligations or covenants under
the Lease. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that, as of the date hereof, (a) the Lease is in full force and effect and has not been modified except
pursuant to this Amendment; (b) to Landlord’s actual knowledge, there are no defaults existing under the Lease; (c) to Landlord’s actual knowledge, there
exist no valid abatements, causes of action, counterclaims, disputes, defenses, offsets, credits, deductions, or claims against the enforcement of any of the
terms and conditions of the Lease; (d) this Amendment has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Landlord and constitutes the legal, valid and
binding obligation of Landlord; and (e) to Landlord’s actual knowledge, Tenant is not in default of any of its obligations or covenants under the Lease.

17. Miscellaneous. (a) From and after the New Premises Commencement Date, the following provisions of the Lease shall be deemed inapplicable
during the term of the Lease and will be deemed deleted in their entirety therefrom: Section 3.04 and Article 35.

(b) Except as set forth herein, nothing contained in this Amendment shall be deemed to amend or modify in any respect the terms of the
Lease and such terms shall remain in full force and effect as modified hereby. If there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Amendment and the
terms of the Lease, the terms of this Amendment shall be controlling and prevail.

(c) This Amendment contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter and all prior negotiations, discussions,

representations, agreements and understandings heretofore had among the parties with respect thereto are merged herein.
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(d) This Amendment may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken
together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.

(e) This Amendment shall not be binding upon Landlord or Tenant unless and until Landlord shall have delivered a fully executed
counterpart of this Amendment to Tenant. Delivery may be made by telefacsimile or electronic (e.g., pdf) means, any of which shall be effective to constitute
delivery.

(f) This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their successors and permitted assigns.

(g) This Amendment shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York without giving effect to choice of law or conflict of laws
principles thereof.

(h) This Amendment shall be interpreted and enforced without the aid of any canon, custom or rules of law requiring or suggesting
construction against the party drafting or causing the drafting of the provision in question. The captions, headings, and titles in this Amendment are solely for
convenience of reference and shall not affect its interpretation.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Amendment as of the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:
T-C 780 THIRD AVENUE OWNER LLC
By: /s/ Laura M. Palombo

Name: Laura M. Palombo
Title: Director

TENANT:
VRINGO, INC.
By: /s/ Andrew Perlman

Name: Andrew Perlman
Title: CEO




Name of Subsidiary

Subsidiaries of Vringo, Inc.

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

Vringo (Israel), Ltd.
Innovate/Protect, Inc.
I/P Engine Inc.

I/P Labs, Inc.

Vringo Labs, Inc.

Vringo Infrastructure, Inc.

Vringo Germany GmbH
Vringo Mobile, Inc.
Vringo Acquisition, Inc.

Israel
Delaware
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Delaware
Delaware




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Vringo Inc.:
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-164575, No. 333-178700, No. 333-180493, No. 333-180609, and No.
333-182823) on Forms S-3, and the registrations statements (No. 333-181477 and No. 333-182853) on Forms S-8, of Vringo Inc. and subsidiaries (a
development stage company) of our report dated March 10, 2014, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Vringo Inc. and subsidiaries (a
development stage company) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2013, and for the cumulative period from June 8, 2011 (inception) through December 31,
2013, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, which reports appear in the December 31, 2013 annual report
on Form 10-K of Vringo Inc. and subsidiaries (a development stage company).
/s/ Somekh Chaikin
Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member firm of KPMG International

Jerusalem, Israel

March 10, 2014




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Andrew D. Perlman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Vringo, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Dated: March 10, 2014

/s/ Andrew D. Perlman
Andrew D. Perlman

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anastasia Nyrkovskaya, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Vringo, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Dated: March 10, 2014

/s/ ANASTASIA NYRKOVSKAYA
Anastasia Nyrkovskaya
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PERSUANT SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), each
of the undersigned officers of Vringo, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that:

The Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2013 (the “Form 10-K”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 10, 2014 /s/ Andrew D. Perlman
Andrew D. Perlman
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: March 10, 2014 /s/ Anastasia Nyrkovskaya
Anastasia Nyrkovskaya
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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